
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Friday, 25th March, 2011 

 
10.00 am 

 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, 

Maidstone 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 





 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 

Friday, 25th March, 2011, at 10.00 am Ask for: Paul Wickenden 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County 
Hall, Maidstone 

Telephone: 01622 694486 

   
Tea/Coffee will be available from 9:45 am 

 
Membership  
 
Conservative (10): Mr N J D Chard (Chairman), Mr B R Cope (Vice-Chairman), 

Mr N J Collor, Mr G Cooke, Mr A D Crowther, Mr K A Ferrin, MBE, 
Mrs J A Rook, Mr C P Smith, Mr R Tolputt and Mr A T Willicombe    
 

Labour (1): Mrs E Green   
 

Liberal Democrat (1): Mr D S Daley  
 

District/Borough 
Representatives  (4):
  

Councillor J Cunningham, Councillor C Kirby, Councillor M Lyons 
and Councillor Mrs M Peters 

LINk Representatives 
(2) 

Mr M J Fittock and Mr R Kendall 

 
Webcasting Notice 

 
Please note:  this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the Council’s 
internet site – at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the 
meeting is being filmed. 
 
By entering the meeting room you are consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of 
those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.  If you do not 
wish to have your image captured then you should make the Clerk of the meeting aware. 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public) 

 

Item   Timings 

1. 
 

Introduction/Webcasting  
 

 

2. 
 

Substitutes  
 

 

3. 
 

Declarations of Interests by Members in items on the Agenda for this 
meeting.  

 



 

4. 
 

Minutes (Pages 1 - 10) 
 

 

5. 
 

Women's and Children's Services at Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells 
NHS Trust: Update. (Pages 11 - 14) 
 

 

6. 
 

Proposal to Establish Informal HOSC Liaison Groups (Pages 15 - 16) 
 

 

7. 
 

Safe and Sustainable - A New Vision for Congenital Heart Services in 
England (Pages 17 - 22) 
 

 

8. 
 

NHS Financial Sustainability. Part 1: Commissioning. (Pages 23 - 68) 
 

 

9. 
 

Date of next programmed meeting – Tuesday 19 April 2011 @ 10:00 
am  
 

 

 

EXEMPT ITEMS 

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items.  During any such items 
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public) 

 
Peter Sass 
Head of Democratic Services and Local Leadership 
(01622) 694002 
  
 17 March 2011 
 
Please note that any background documents referred to in the accompanying papers 
maybe inspected by arrangement with the officer responsible for preparing the relevant 
report. 
 



 

KENT COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

 

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of a meeting of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in the 
Council Chamber, Sessions House, County Hall, Maidstone on Friday, 4 February 
2011. 
 
PRESENT: Mr N J D Chard (Chairman), Mr B R Cope (Vice-Chairman), Mr G Cooke, 
Mr A D Crowther, Mr D S Daley, Mr K A Ferrin, MBE, Mrs E Green, Mr J F London 
(Substitute for Mr N J Collor), Mrs J A Rook, Mr C P Smith, Mr R Tolputt, 
Mr A T Willicombe, Cllr R Davison (Substitute for Cllr J Cunningham), Cllr M Lyons, 
Dr M R Eddy (Substitute for Mr M J Fittock) and Mr R Kendall 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Cllr John Avey, Cllr Mrs A Blackmore, Su Brown, Gordon Court, 
Mr J Larcombe, Jo Naismith and Victoria Ong 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: Mr T Godfrey (Research Officer to Health Overview Scrutiny 
Committee) and Mr P D Wickenden (Overview, Scrutiny and Localism Manager) 
 

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS 
 
1. Membership  
(Item ) 
 
The Committee noted its new Membership as set out below: 
 
Conservative (10): Mr N J D Chard, Mr N J Collor, Mr G Cooke, Mr B R Cope, Mr A D 
Crowther, Mr K A Ferrin MBE, Mrs J A Rook, Mr C P Smith, Mr R Tolputt and Mr A T 
Willicombe. 
 
Liberal Democrat (1): Mr D S Daley 
 
Labour (1): Mrs E Green 
 
District/Borough Representatives (4): Councillor J Cunningham, Councillor C Kirby, 
Councillor M Lyons and Councillor Mrs M Peters.  
 
LINk Representatives (2): Mr M J Fittock and Mr R Kendall. 
 
2. Election of Chairman  
(Item ) 
 
Mr B R Cope proposed and Mrs J A Rook seconded that Mr N J D Chard be elected 
Chairman of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

Agreed without a vote. 
 

Mr N J D Chard thereupon took the Chair. 
 
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 

 

3. Minutes  
(Item 4) 
 
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Meeting of 7 January 2010 are recorded and that 
they be signed by the Chairman.  
 
4. Update on Women's and Children's Services at Maidstone and Tunbridge 
Wells NHS Trust  
(Item 6) 
 
(1) Members had before them the information in the Agenda along with the 

additional information provided for them by NHS Eastern and Coastal Kent 
and East Kent Hospitals NHS University Foundation Trust concerning the 
review of maternity services in East Kent (see Appendix).  

 
(2) The Chairman undertook to provide further information when a reply was 

received from the Secretary of State for Health.  
 
(3) RESOLVED that the Committee note the attached correspondence.  
 
 
5. The Future Shape of Community Service Provision  
(Item 5) 
 
Meradin Peachey (Kent Director of Public Health), Dr Robert Blundell (Vice Chair, 
Kent Local Medical Committee), Dr Mike Parks (Medical Secretary, Kent Local 
Medical Committee), Di Tyas (Deputy Clerk, Kent Local Medical Committee), Philip 
Greenhill, (Interim Chief Executive, Eastern and Coastal Kent Community Health 
NHS Trust), Mark Shepperd (Managing Director, West Kent Community Health), Phil 
Edbrooke (Interim Director of Corporate Services, Eastern and Coastal Kent 
Community Health NHS Trust), Oena Windibank (Interim Director of Operations, 
Eastern and Coastal Kent Community Health NHS Trust), and Bill Millar (Head of 
Primary, Community and Elective Care, NHS Eastern and Coastal Kent) were in 
attendance for this item.  
 
(1) The Committee had previously discussed the subject of the future of 

community service provision at the meeting of 5 September 2010. 
Representatives from the NHS provided an overview of events subsequent to 
that meeting along with an outline of future progression. Following approval in 
2010 the community provider organisation within NHS Eastern and Coastal 
Kent to become a separate NHS Trust, Eastern and Coastal Kent Community 
Health NHS Trust was formally established on 1 November 2010. West Kent 
Community Health currently remains part of NHS West Kent, but following 
approval of the business case for a Pan-Kent Community Health Trust, this will 
join with Eastern and Coastal Kent Community Health NHS Trust as a single 
organisation from April 2011. This organisation will seek Foundation Trust 
status, which may be granted in 2013.  

 
(2) A formal consultation on these plans had been carried out, but it was reported 

that there had been more informal than formal responses received. The major 
concerns raised in these responses centred on the ability and willingness of 
commissioners, now and in the future, to commission services locally. To 

Page 2



 

 

address these concerns, the organisation was being structured so that it could 
operate on a locality basis and local boards were being established involving 
stakeholders that would inform service delivery. Members felt there was an 
opportunity there to tie in these proposed boards with work going on within 
local authorities in Kent. The NHS said they would look into the idea. In 
addition, it was pointed out that there would be a public consultation as part of 
the application for Foundation Trust status and there would be Governors 
drawn from the public membership of the Foundation Trust.  

 
(3) Areas of the country such as Liverpool, Birmingham and Wigan were reported 

as seeing a similar size merger take place. Medway was pursuing a social 
enterprise model. In other areas of the country the community services were 
joined to a mental health or an acute Trust. One weakness of the latter was 
that during periods of budgetary constraint, the community services were often 
the first to experience reductions. However, there were some services for 
which this may be appropriate and the right option for community paediatrics 
and stroke services were still being examined.  

 
(4) The original policy proposal was for the community health estate, including 

community hospitals, to remain with the Primary Care Trusts. With the 
exception of Private Finance Initiative sites, the estate was largely going to be 
transferred into the new community services Trust. How these are to be used 
will be part of the ongoing discussion with commissioners.  

 
(5) Members raised the issue of the establishment of a new Trust adding to the 

levels of bureaucracy and costs within the health economy. An alternative 
perspective presented by representatives of the NHS is that the new Trust 
could be seen as a reduction of bureaucracy and management costs as to 
community service organisations were forming into one and would need, for 
example, one Chief Executive. The savings in this area from the merger were 
estimated at around £1 million per year. They also had a five-year efficiency 
savings target of £25-30 million and that this needed to be seen against an 
annual income of around £200 million.  

 
(6) In contrast to acute services, community services were largely funded through 

block contracts. Any tariff for community services has to be agreed locally as 
there is no national one. There was an increasing move away from this as a 
cost per service system was seen as more useful. For example, in Kent a cost 
per case system for musculoskeletal services was being introduced.  

 
(7) There was also a move by the Department of Health away from process 

targets, or inputs such as the number of nurse contacts, towards information 
on outcomes. However, there were issues around data collections and 
measurements in the community services sector.  

 
(8) The important role that community hospitals can play in the health economy, 

as for example in reducing and preventing stays in acute hospitals, was 
acknowledged by all those present and Members of the Committee. Beyond 
this there was detailed discussion around the different uses they could be put 
to and the involvement of GPs in their local hospital.   

 

Page 3



 

 

(9) It was reported that there was a sense that a number of GPs felt that in some 
areas of Kent, the connection between the community and its community 
hospital was weak. Dr Blundell felt that an admitting radius of ten miles was 
best as it would make it easier for patients, who tended to be elderly, to 
receive visits from family.  

 
(10) There was consensus that arrangements between GPs and community 

hospitals needed to be different to suit different areas and needs. For 
example, a salaried GP provided cover at Livingstone Hospital in Dartford, and 
in Sevenoaks Hospital there were GPs on wards as well as an adult physician 
who managed patients jointly with GPs.  

 
(11) Changes and improvements to the use of community hospitals were reported 

as already having taken place and would be continuing. For example, in West 
Kent, the use of community hospitals for end of life care had been a cause of 
friction in the past, but from July 2010, two beds had been ring-fenced in each 
hospital for this purpose.  

 
(12) The Chairman expressed his thanks to the numerous community Hospital 

League of Friend’s organisations who had been able to submit information for 
inclusion in the Committee’s Agenda, and several Members echoed these 
sentiments. Jo Naismith, the Chairman of the League of Friends of Edenbridge 
and District War Memorial, was present and invited to speak on the topic of 
community hospitals. She began by thanking the Committee for its interest in 
the subject and the opportunity to present their views. She went to explain that 
the situation had improved markedly over the situation a few years ago when 
the hospital in Edenbridge was threatened with closure and that West Kent 
Community Health worked very well with them. Her concern with the move 
towards GP commissioning was that, although the GPs in Edenbridge were 
very good, if they were not at the forefront of commissioning decisions, there 
may not be anyone to speak for Edenbridge when it came to service 
developments.  

 
(13) Members had before them a paper from the Kent Director of Public Health, 

which she explained was part of an ongoing process of identifying public 
health funding in commissioning services and that more detail would become 
available over time and would be made available to the Committee. As this 
work had not been completed, this explained why there were some apparent 
discrepancies between East and West Kent. For example, Eastern and 
Coastal Kent Community Services NHS Trust provided sexual health services 
in East Kent, whereas Dartford and Gravesham NHS Trust provided the same 
services in West Kent.  

 
(14) It was explained that the benefits of investments in public health and 

preventive services often took a long time to be seen. Sometimes it was the 
case that not enough had been invested in the case, so that no benefit was 
shown, even if the strategy was potentially effective.  

 
(15) There were some questions raised about specific programmes. The Health 

Trainer programme was a Department of Health requirement which had a 
positive aspect in that it involved people who were not registered with a GP 
and so in more need of additional support. An evaluation of the Home Start 

Page 4



 

 

programme was underway and the results would be shared, as would further 
information around the numbers involved in the programme as well as the 
funding.  

 
(16) During the final section of this item, Members expressed the view that they 

would appreciate further information on the following: 
 

1. TUPE regulations;  
 
2. Savings and what might be the management costs now and in the 

future within community services; 
 

3. The mechanisms of NHS finances; and 
 

4. The broad pattern of demographic changes in Kent and the impact on 
NHS finances 

 
(17) More broadly, a request was made for more information on the details of 

Government proposals for the health sector.  
 
6. Date of next programmed meeting – Friday 25 March 2010 @ 10:00 am  
(Item 7) 
 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Item 5 – Women’s and Children’s Services at Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust: 

Update.   

By:  Paul Wickenden, Overview, Scrutiny and Localism Manager 
 
To:  Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 25 March 2011  
  
Subject: Women’s and Children’s Services at Maidstone and Tunbridge 

Wells NHS Trust: Update.   
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
1. Background 
 
(a) At the meeting of this Committee of 7 January 2011, the following 

resolution was passed: 

1. That the Vice-Chairman of the Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (HOSC) writes to the Secretary of State for Health, 
expressing profound disappointment with his decision to 
downgrade maternity and paediatric services at Maidstone that 
overrides the near-unanimous views of HOSC on 19 February 
2010 and the local GPs opposing the reconfiguration plans.  

2. That the Vice-Chairman of HOSC also requests that the 
Secretary of State for Health defers his decision until Maidstone 
GPs as future commissioners of local clinical services, are able 
to determine the future scope of maternity provision in the 
County Town.       

  

3. That KCC monitors the impact of the reconfiguration on the 
number of admissions to the consultant-led maternity units 
at Medway and Ashford Hospitals.   

  

4. In view of reported shortages of midwives and the temporary 
closure of the birthing units in East Kent over the Christmas and 
New Year period, that HOSC requests an urgent review of all 
birthing units and consultant-led maternity services in Kent.  

 
(b) The subsequent reply from the Secretary of State is attached. 
 

 
 
 
 

2. Recommendations 
 
The Committee is asked to note the attached correspondence. 

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13



Page 14



Item 6: Proposal to establish informal HOSC liaison groups.  

By:   Paul Wickenden, Overview, Scrutiny and Localism Manager 
 
To:  Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 25 March 2011 
  
Subject: Proposal to establish informal HOSC liaison groups  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
1. Introduction. 
 
(a) Members of the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee have 

expressed the view that there is a need to receive more information on 
a regular basis concerning matters relating to the planning, provision 
and operation of health services in Kent. Meetings of the Committee 
have tended to focus on looking at one or more subjects in depth in 
order, and there needs to be a process of prioritisation to determine 
which topics are selected for consideration in a formal meeting. 

 
(b) One way of realising this twin challenge of deepening Members’ 

understanding of health services in Kent and improving the process of 
prioritisation is potentially through the establishment of informal HOSC 
liaison groups.  

 
(c) There are a number of ways in which these groups could work, but one 

suggested way is that a particular Member of the Committee volunteer 
to lead one of the groups and, with one or two others, meet up with 
representatives from the major providers of healthcare in Kent and 
Medway 2-4 times each year for an informal update about issues 
relating to that specific Trust. The lead Member would then take 
responsibility for providing occasional updates to the rest of the 
Committee. It may be possible that the other Members of the groups 
will be drawn from outside of HOSC.  

 
(d) Once Members have expressed an interest, the relevant Trusts will 

then be contacted to see if they would be willing to participate. It is 
suggested that the following trusts be contacted: 

 

• Dartford and Gravesham NHS Trust 

• East Kent Hospitals NHS University Foundation Trust 

• Kent and Medway NHS and Social care Partnership Trust 

• Kent Community Health NHS Trust (as of 1 April 2011) 

• Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust 

• Medway NHS Foundation Trust 

• South East Coast Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 
 
(e) It would be more appropriate if the Members involved in a group 

relating to a specific Trust had no current formal relationship with that 
Trust. 

 
(f) One possible role for these groups will be to contribute to the 

development of the annual Quality Accounts that provider Trusts are 

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



Item 6: Proposal to establish informal HOSC liaison groups.  

required to produce.  Further information of the Quality Accounts is set 
out in the next section.  

 
2. Quality Accounts 
 
(a) The requirement to produce Quality Accounts formed part of the Health 

Act 2009 and the first statutory ones were produced in June 2010. The 
requirement currently only applies to larger providers of NHS services, 
excluding primary care and continuing care services. This may change 
in the future and community health services will be included for the first 
time in 2011/12.  

 
(b) The main purpose of Quality Accounts is “is to encourage boards and 

leaders of healthcare organisations to assess quality across all of the 
healthcare services they offer.”1 

 
(c) There are some mandatory parts to a Quality Account and others that 

may be determined locally. The following must be included: 
 

• A statement from the Board on the quality of NHS services 
provided. 

• Priorities for quality improvement within the organisation in the 
coming year. 

• A series of statements as set out in regulations. 

• A review of the quality of services within the organisation.  
 
(d) Organisations producing Quality Accounts are required to send copies 

to the appropriate HOSC, LINk and Primary Care Trust for comment 
prior to publication and these comments are for inclusion in the 
published version (up to 1000 words are allowed for the HOSC 
comment). HOSCs are not required to make comments.  

 
(e) The number of Trusts in Kent and the limited time allowed by the 

process to produce comments has meant this has not been possible in 
the past. 

  

                                                
1
 Department of Health, Quality Accounts Toolkit 2010/11, December 2010, p.8, 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/@dh/@en/@ps/documents/di
gitalasset/dh_122540.pdf  

3.  Recommendations 
 
(a) Members of the Committee are asked to approve the establishment 

of informal HOSC liaison groups and express their views if they wish 
to lead or be part of a particular group.  

 
(b) Members are asked to delegate authority to the Head of Democratic 

Services in consultation with the Chairman to invite local 
district/borough Councillors to be part of these liaison groups where 
there are vacancies.  

 

Page 16



Item 7: Safe and Sustainable – A New Vision for Congenital Heart Services in 
England 

   
By:  Paul Wickenden, Overview, Scrutiny and Localism Manager 
 
To:  Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 25 March 2011 
  
Subject: Safe and Sustainable – A New Vision for Congenital Heart Services 

in England 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
1. Background. 
 
(a) Most services in the NHS are commissioned by Primary Care Trusts. 

There is a different process for commissioning specialised services. 
These services are defined by law as those services which cover a 
planning population (catchment) of a million, or more.  

 
(b) There are ten regional Specialised Commissioning Groups, like the 

South East Coast Specialised Commissioning Group1, which secure 
specialised services for their regional populations, such as rare 
cancers. Around 60 specialised services are commissioned by the 
National Specialised Commissioning Team (NHS Specialised 
Services). These are services which affect fewer than 500 people 
across England or where fewer than 500 specialised procedures are 
undertaken each year, such as secure forensic mental health services 
for young people (around 80 patients each year).  

 
2. Review of children’s heart surgery in England. 
 
(a) Another example is congenital heart disease which refers to defects in 

a child’s heart which are present from birth. It is a relatively rare, 
lifelong condition often requiring very complex treatment from a team of 
heart specialists. 85% of children with the condition survive into 
adulthood. 

 
(b) Over the past few years NHS Specialised Services has been 

undertaking a review of children’s heart surgery in England. The full 
title of the review is ‘The Safe and Sustainable Review of Paediatric 
Congenital Cardiac Services in England’. The review has been 
undertaken on behalf of all Primary Care Trusts in the country2. 

 
(c) The review has now reached the stage where a set of options has been 

agreed for public consultation between 28th February and 1st July 2011. 
The consultation covers four main areas: 
 
i. Standards of care 
ii. Congenital heart networks. 
iii. Larger surgical centres.  

                                                
1
 See: http://www.secscg.nhs.uk/home/  

2
 The consultation document can be accessed here: 
http://www.specialisedservices.nhs.uk/safe_sustainable/public-consultation-2011  

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



Item 7: Safe and Sustainable – A New Vision for Congenital Heart Services in 
England 

iv. Measuring quality.  
 

(d) There are currently 11 hospital trusts in England with children’s heart 
surgery centres, including three in London. These centres are: 

 
i. Newcastle-upon-Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
ii. Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
iii. Alder Hey Children’s NHS Foundation Trust (Liverpool) 
iv. University Hospitals of Leicester NHS Trust 
v. Birmingham Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
vi. Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children NHS Trust (London) 
vii. Royal Brompton and Harefield NHS Trust (London) 
viii. Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust (London) 
ix. Oxford Radcliffe Hospital NHS Trust 
x. University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 
xi. Southampton University Hospitals NHS Trust 

 
(e) A number of other hospitals provide related services for children with 

heart conditions but do not provide surgery. 
 
(f) None of the surgical centres are in the South East Coast region, but 

there are outreach sites at all the acute hospital sites in Kent and 
Medway.  

 
(g) Data supplied by the South East Coast Specialised Commissioning 

Group shows that in 2009/10 in Eastern and Coastal Kent there were 
45 in-patient hospital stays for paediatric cardiac surgery (43 at the 
Brompton, 2 in Leeds) and in West Kent there were 37 (all at the 
Brompton). 

 
(h) A summary excerpt from the consultation paper including the options 

being consulted on can be found as an appendix to the paper3.  
 
3. Responding to the consultation. 
 
(a) All HOSCs in England are being asked to consider whether the 

proposals represent a ‘substantial development or variation’ to health 
services for their residents, requiring formal consultation with the 
committee as set out in health scrutiny legislation. If a number of 
HOSCs consider this to be the case, one or more large joint HOSCs 
will need to be established to respond to the consultation. 

 
(b) If a HOSC does not consider the proposals to be substantial there is 

still the option for the committee to respond informally to the 
consultation process with any comments it wishes to be taken into 
consideration.  

 

                                                
3
 Ibid. pp.5-8.  

Page 18



Item 7: Safe and Sustainable – A New Vision for Congenital Heart Services in 
England 

(c) For children’s heart surgery Kent residents are primarily served by 
London hospitals, and will continue to be under the proposals. The 
wider aspects of the proposals such as the standards of care and the 
proposed role of local non-surgical centres within the networks are 
common across the South East Coast region. It may be appropriate to 
develop an informal response to the consultation in conjunction with 
other HOSCs in the region through the network of South East Coast 
HOSC Chairmen which meets on a regular basis.   

 
  

 

4. Recommendations. 
 
The Committee is asked to agree that a regional response to the 
consultation be agreed through the South East Coast HOSC Chairmen 
network.  

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21



Page 22



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability: Part 1 – Commissioning 

By:  Paul Wickenden, Overview, Scrutiny and Localism Manager 
 
To:  Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 25 March 2011 
  
Subject: NHS Financial Sustainability: Part 1 - Commissioning 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
1. Background 
 
(a) Following the approval of the Forward Work Programme of the Health 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 7 January 2011, this will be the 
first of three meetings dedicated to the topic of NHS Financial 
Sustainability. In overarching terms, the intention is to determine 
answers to the following strategic questions: 

 
1.  What are the challenges to ensuring the NHS in Kent is 

financially sustainable? 
 
2. Are there any implications for the range and quality of health 

services available to the people of Kent as a result of any 
measures being taken to achieve or maintain financial 
sustainability? 

        
(b) The focus of this meeting will be on hearing from the Primary Care 

Trusts. The four main Acute Trusts have been invited to the meeting on 
19 April and the intention is to consider mental health services, 
community health services and ambulance services at the meeting of 
10 June.  

 
(c) The Kent Local Medical Committee have been invited to attend and 

asked for any information they wished to provide on this topic. The 
Kent LINk were invited to submit information if they wished. For 
background information, the questions asked of the Primary Care 
Trusts in advance of the meeting are contained in the Appendix to this 
report. 

 
(d)  The Committee has often discussed different ways in which its work 

can become more outcomes focussed. Due to the depth in which this 
topic is to be considered by the Committee, one way might be to 
prepare a number of recommendations over the course of these 
meetings for submission to the relevant organisations, with their 
response to be considered at a future meeting.  

 
 
  
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 23



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability: Part 1 – Commissioning 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Appendix 

 

(a) Questions to NHS Eastern and Coastal Kent and NHS West Kent: 
 

1. Why is achieving financial balance across the local health 
economy important and what are the potential consequences of 
not doing so? 

2. What kinds of measures have been taken in 2010/11 in terms of 
prioritising treatments and changing service provision across 
Kent in order to try and achieve financial balance? 

3. What kinds of measures are being considered for 2011/12? 
4. What are the main challenges to achieving financial balance 

across the health economy? 
5. What has been the impact of the NHS Operating Framework for 

2011/12 and the PCT allocations for the next financial year? 
6. How is the QIPP challenge being met in Kent?  
7. What are the particular demographic trends in Kent that will 

affect NHS commissioning now and in the future, and how does 
Kent compare on these compared to the rest of the country?  

 
  
 
 
 
 
 

2. Recommendations 

 

The Committee is asked to agree the following: 
 

1. Members are asked to delegate authority to the Head of 
Democratic Services in consultation with the Chairman, Vice-
Chairman and Group Spokesmen to prepare a list of 
recommendations to present to a future meeting of the 
Committee for discussion and agreement prior to their 
submission to the NHS for a response.  

 
2. To assist this process, Members are asked to suggest 

recommendations to the Committee Officers following each 
meeting. 

 
  

Page 24



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability - Background Note.  

By: Tristan Godfrey, Research Officer to the Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee   

 
To:  Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 25 March 2011.  
 
Subject: NHS Financial Sustainability: Part 1 – Commissioning.  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
  
1. NHS Finances – Overview 
 
(a) Under the current system, Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) are responsible 

for around 80% of NHS funding and use this money to commission 
services to meet the health needs of their populations. These revenue 
allocations are made directly to PCTs by the Department of Health.  

 
(b) On 15 December 2010, the allocations for 2011-12 were announced by 

the Department of Health. The overall total was £89 billion – most of 
this is ‘recurrent revenue allocations’, but £3.4 billion was non-recurrent 
allocations for primary dental services, general ophthalmic services and 
pharmaceutical services, and an additional £648 million was made 
available to support joint working between health and social care1. 

 
(c) A weighted capitation formula is used as the basis for allocating 

budgets to PCTs with the intention of reflecting the different needs of 
each area. The formula is complex but is based on the PCT 
populations adjusted for their age distribution, additional needs over 
and above that of age and the Market Forces Factor (MFF) which takes 
account of the unavoidable differences in the cost of providing services 
in different parts of the country. Appendix 1 lays out the various 
components of the weighted capitation formula2. 

 
(d) The development of the formula is overseen by the Advisory 

Committee of Resource Allocation which makes recommendations to 
the Secretary of State on possible changes.  

 
(e) This produces a weighted capitation target which may not be the same 

as the actual current allocation and the gap is referred to as the 
difference from target (DFT). PCTs are moved towards their target at a 
pace set by Ministers.  

 

                                            
1
 Department of Health, 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Managingyourorganisation/Financeandplanning/Allocations/DH_076
547 
2
 Taken from Resource Allocation: Weighted Capitation Formula Seventh Edition, Department 
of Health, 8 March 2011. Fuller details of the different parts can be found in this document. 
Available at: 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/documents/digitalasset/dh_1
24947.pdf  

Page 25



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability - Background Note.  

(f) The money PCTs receive is not ring fenced, though there are a number 
of constraints. NHS Trusts and other providers receive funds from 
PCTs for providing services through contracts or through tariffs, such 
as the Payment by Results (PbR) system used in the acute sector. 
Different systems of currencies and tariffs are being developed for 
different sectors of the health economy.  

 
(g) The distinction between a currency and a tariff is as follows: 
 

1. “Currencies are the unit of healthcare for which a payment is 
made. They can take a number of forms, covering different time 
periods – for instance, in acute physical PbR, outpatient 
attendances are paid on a contact basis, whilst for long term 
conditions we are looking to develop annual payments adjusted 
for complexity, which would be more like the care cluster 
approach. Our initial commitment in mental health is to develop 
currencies that are being used nationally. 

 
2. “Tariffs are set prices for a given currency unit. The collected 

nationally determined prices for HRGs are sometimes referred to 
as the tariff. We have committed to examining the case for a 
national mental health tariff following the establishment of 
national currencies. Without a national tariff, prices for a given 
currency can be set locally or regionally (i.e. at SHA level).”3 

 
3. HRGs, Healthcare Resource Groups, are the chosen currency 

for acute healthcare in England.  They are “standard groupings 
of similar treatments which use similar levels of healthcare 
resources.”4 

 
(h) A number of specialised services, such as paediatric cardiology 

services, are commissioned regionally or nationally.  
 
(i) The remaining 20% (approx.) of the NHS budget includes capital 

spending along with funds allocated for the delivery of both regional 
and national programmes and services5.  

 
(j) In the future the Government proposes that one of the roles of the new 

NHS Commissioning Board will be to allocate resources for 2013-14 
when GP Consortia will take over most of the commissioning currently 
carried out by the PCTs (see section 3).  

 

                                            
3
 The Department of Health, February 2010, Payment by Results Guidance for 2010/11, p.95, 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/@dh/@en/@ps/documents/di
gitalasset/dh_112970.pdf  
4
 The Department of Health, September 2010, A Simple Guide to PbR, p.20, 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/@dh/@en/@ps/documents/di
gitalasset/dh_120254.pdf 
5
 NHS funding and expenditure, House of Commons Library Standard Note, 12 January 2011, 
http://www.parliament.uk/briefingpapers/commons/lib/research/briefings/snsg-00724.pdf   

Page 26



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability - Background Note.  

(k) The PCT revenue allocations for England for 2011/12 can be found in 
Appendix 26.  

 
 
2. NHS Operating Framework 
 
(a) The NHS Operating Framework for 2011/12 was published by the 

Department of Health the same day as the PCT allocations were 
announced (15 December 2010). This document sets out what the 
NHS needs to achieve during what it refers to as a ‘transition year’7.  

 
(b) The key points of the NHS Operating Framework for 2011/12 are as 

follows: 
 

• Average growth in PCT recurrent allocations of 2.2%. 

• PCTs will receive allocations totalling £648 million to support 
social care in addition to the £150 million funding for reablement 
services incorporated into recurrent PCT allocations.  

• The delivery of the QIPP (Quality, innovation, productivity and 
prevention) challenge of £20 billion efficiency savings for re-
investment has been extended by one year to the end of 
2014/15.  

• No automatic capital allocation for PCTs – any capital funding to 
be granted on a case-by-case basis. 

• An overall tariff reduction between 2010/11 and 2011/12 of 
1.5%. 

• New outpatient attendance tariffs to be introduced. New 
currencies and tariffs to be developed (and led locally).  

• Hospitals will not be reimbursed for emergency readmissions 
within 30 days of a discharge from an elective admission. Other 
readmission rates to be agreed locally. 

• Where providers and commissioners agree, services can be 
offered below the tariff price.  

• Strategic Health Authorities are to oversee the development of 
PCT ‘clusters’ with a single executive team to oversee the 
transition and support emerging GP consortia (including the 
assignment of PCT staff to consortia). Locally, Ann Sutton has 
been appointed to lead the cluster consisting of NHS Eastern 
and Coastal Kent, NHS Medway and NHS West Kent8.  

                                            
6
 Sourced from Resource Allocation: Weighted Capitation Formula Seventh Edition, 
Department of Health, 8 March 2011, p.76, 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/documents/digitalasset/dh_1
24947.pdf  
7
 Department of Health, NHS Operating Framework, 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/PublicationsPolicyAndGuidanc
e/DH_122738  
8
 NHS Eastern and Coastal Kent, 1 February 2011, 
http://www.easternandcoastalkent.nhs.uk/whats-new/latest-news/local-nhs-leaders-step-up-
to-challenge-of-reform/  

Page 27



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability - Background Note.  

• GP consortia will not be responsible for PCT legacy debt prior to 
2011/12. PCTs and consortia to work closely together to prevent 
PCT deficits prior to 2013/14, when GP consortia will have their 
own budgets.  

• Developing consortia will receive £2 per head to support this 
process. Running costs of £25 to £35 per head are expected by 
2014/15.  

• A number of new commitments were made on health visitors, 
family nurse partnerships, the cancer drugs fund, military and 
veterans’ health, autism, dementia and carers support.  

• The areas listed as areas for improvement include healthcare for 
people with learning disabilities, child health, diabetes, violence, 
respiratory disease and regional trauma networks.  

 
(c) Details around the extension of the “any willing provider” (AWP) model 

are being considered by the Department of Health at present, with the 
expectation “it would apply to many NHS-funded services in future. The 
2011/12 Operating Framework made clear that AWP will be introduced 
for community services during 2011/12.”9 

 
(d) QIPP (Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention) is a series of 12 

workstreams10 aimed at making efficiency savings to be reinvested in 
services. These twelve are divided into three areas, as set out below: 

 
Table 1: QIPP Workstreams11 

Commissioning and 
Pathways 

Provider Efficiency System Enablers 

• Safe care  

• Right care  

• Long term 
conditions  

• Urgent and 
emergency care  

• End of life care  
 

• Back office 
efficiency and 
optimal 
management  

• Procurement  

• Clinical support  

• Productive care  

• Medicine use and 
procurement  

 

• Primary care 
commissioning  

• Technology and 
digital vision  

 

 
(e) The Operating Framework also states that the four tests for service 

reconfiguration set out in May 2010 stand. These are: 
 

• support from GP commissioners;  

                                            
9
 Dear Colleague Letter from Sir David Nicholson, NHS Chief Executive, Equity and 
Excellence: Liberating the NHS – Managing the Transition,  17 February 2011, p.14, 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/documents/digitalasset/dh_1
24479.pdf  
10
 Department of Health website, 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Healthcare/Qualityandproductivity/QIPP/index.htm  
11
 Adapted from Department of Health, QIPP workstreams, 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Healthcare/Qualityandproductivity/QIPPworkstreams/index.htm  

Page 28



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability - Background Note.  

• strengthened public and patient engagement;  

• clarity on the clinical evidence base; and  

• consistency with current and prospective patient choice.  
 
(f) The duty of PCTs to consult overview and scrutiny committees on 

substantial service change is to remain during the transition. 
 
 
3. Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS 
 
(a) The Operating Framework for 2011/12 can be seen as setting out how   

the transition to the new system set out in the NHS White Paper, Equity 
and Excellence: Liberating the NHS, and the Health and Social Care 
Bill currently progressing through Parliament.  

 
(b) Simplified diagrams comparing the current to the proposed structure 

can be found in Section 4. 
 
(c) The main elements of the proposals are set out below: 
 

1. NHS Commissioning Board –  
 

i. This will be a non-departmental public body accountable to the 
Secretary of State with an overarching duty to promote a 
comprehensive health service. As set out above, the Board will 
take on the responsibility for allocating resources to GP 
consortia. It will publish commissioning guidance and model 
care pathways (based on quality standards produced by NICE). 
The price-setting structure will be the responsibility of the Board, 
along with developing model and standard contractual terms for 
providers.  

 
ii. It will be responsible for the financial performance of consortia 

and hold them to account for the quality outcomes they achieve. 
It will also have some specific powers in connection to consortia 
– ensuring there is comprehensive coverage of England by 
consortia; ensuring all GP practices are part of a consortium; 
overseeing a failure regime for consortia. 

 
iii. The Board will also undertake some commissioning. It will 

commission primary care services (such as community 
pharmacy, ophthalmology and dental services along with 
primary medical services provided by GPs). It will also 
commission a number of services currently commissioned 
regionally or nationally.  

 
2. GP/commissioning consortia –  

 
i. The majority of health services will be commissioned by GPs 

and their practice teams through consortia. These will be 

Page 29



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability - Background Note.  

statutory bodies and all holders of a primary medical services 
contract must belong to a consortium. There is considerable 
local flexibility around the size and structure of these consortia 
as well as their geographical coverage, and these elements are 
open to change over time. They will be required to put robust 
governance arrangements in place and will have an Accountable 
Officer (not necessarily a clinician).  

 
3. Monitor – 

 
i. Monitor currently regulates NHS Foundation Trusts but under 

the proposals would become the economic regulator for the 
health sector. Its three core functions will be to promote 
competition where appropriate; regulate prices for NHS funded 
services; and support the continuity of services. The Bill allows 
for Monitor’s role to be extended to regulating adult social care 
at a later date by Government.  

 
ii. NHS commissioners will consult locally on services which are to 

be designated as subject to additional licensing conditions with 
Monitor and which Monitor will ensure continue to be provided, 
even if the provider fails. 

 
4. Foundation Trusts (FTs) – 

 
i. All NHS Trusts are to become Foundation Trusts (or part of an 

FT) by 1 April 2014 and NHS Trust legislation would be repealed 
(meaning non-FT NHS Trusts will not exist). A Provider 
Development Authority will be set up to performance manage 
NHS Trusts until they become Foundation Trusts; this Authority 
will then be wound down. A number of changes are also being 
made to the governance and financial freedoms of FTs.  

 
5. Health and Wellbeing Boards (HWBs) –  

 
i. Upper tier authorities will be required to set up a HWB, which will 

be a statutory committee. The membership will consist, at a 
minimum, of one elected representative, the director of adult 
social services, director of children’s services, director of public 
health and representative from the local HealthWatch, and one 
representative from each relevant commissioning consortia 
(unless the HWB agrees to a single representative of more than 
one consortia). There will also be involvement from the NHS 
Commissioning Board. Local authorities and GP consortia will 
have a responsibility to produce a Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) and will develop them through the HWB. 
They must also develop a joint health and well-being strategy 
(JHWBS) which will set out how the needs identified in the JSNA 
will be met.  

 

Page 30



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability - Background Note.  

ii. Other powers and responsibilities, except that of scrutiny, can be 
conferred on the HWB.  

 
6. Scrutiny – 

 
i. From April 2013, the functions of the current Health Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee will be conferred on the local authority 
directly. The exercise of this function could be through a specific 
health scrutiny committee or through a different arrangement 
(with the exception that it cannot be exercised by the HWB).  

 
ii. The powers of health scrutiny will expand to include any NHS 

funded provider and any NHS commissioner. The Bill will allow 
the regulations around referrals of substantial service change to 
be changed. The decision to refer is likely to require a meeting 
of the full council. There is likely to be consultation specifically 
on health scrutiny regulations at a later date.  

  
7. HealthWatch – 

 
i. Local Involvement Networks (LINks) will transform into Local 

HealthWatch. They will be commissioned and funded by upper 
tier local authorities and be based in local authority areas. The 
functions of promoting and supporting public involvement in the 
commissioning, provision and scrutiny of local health services 
will continue. The local authority will be able to commission 
HealthWatch to provide advice and information to people about 
health and social care. 

 
ii. The local authority will also commission NHS complaints 

advocacy services, which may or may not be commissioned 
from HealthWatch. Commissioning of independent mental health 
advocacy will also move to local authorities, but will be separate 
from the NHS advocacy services.  

 
iii Local HealthWatch will have the power to refer issues to 

HealthWatch England. HealthWatch England will be a statutory 
committee within the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and will 
support the Local HealthWatches as well as escalating concerns 
received from them within the CQC.  

 
8. Public Health –  

 
i. A separate Public Health White Paper, Health Lives, Healthy 

People, was published by the Department of Health on 30 
November 201012.  

 

                                            
12
 The Public Health White Paper and related documents can be accessed at the Department 
of Health website, http://www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publichealth/Healthyliveshealthypeople/index.htm  

Page 31



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability - Background Note.  

ii A new service, Public Health England, will be set up as part of 
the Department of Health. This will involve the transfer of 
functions and powers from the Health Protection Agency and 
National Treatment Agency for Substance Misuse. 

 
iii. Local health improvement functions will transfer to local 

government, along with ring-fenced funding. There will be a 
health premium linked to progress made against a proposed 
public health outcomes framework. Directors of Public Health 
will be employed by local government and jointly appointed by 
the local authority and Public Health England.  

 
 
4. Current and proposed structure of the NHS 
 
(a) These notes apply to the Notes in Chart 1 (next page), providing further 

background detail of the current structure of the NHS as it applies to 
Kent and Medway:   

 
1.  Strategic Health Authority (SHA) – NHS South East Coast 

covers Kent, Medway, Surrey, Brighton and Hove, East Sussex 
and West Sussex. 

 
2. Primary Care Trusts (PCTs) – Three PCTS in Kent and 

Medway: NHS Eastern and Coastal Kent, NHS Medway and 
NHS West Kent. They are being brought into a single ‘cluster’.  

 
3.  NHS Trusts – The main provider NHS Trusts in Kent and 

Medway are: Dartford and Gravesham NHS Trust, Maidstone 
and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust, Kent and Medway NHS and 
Social Care Partnership Trust, and Eastern and Coastal Kent 
Community Health NHS Trust (Kent Community Health NHS 
Trust as of 1 April 2011). 

 
4.  NHS Foundation Trusts – The main NHS Foundation Trusts in 

Kent and Medway are: East Kent Hospitals NHS University 
Foundation Trust, Medway NHS Foundation Trust, and South 
East Coast Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust. 

 
(b) The above list does not exhaust the list of NHS Trust/Foundation Trust 

providers – some services are provided within Kent and Medway by 
other Trusts/Foundation Trusts (for example, South London and 
Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust) and residents of Kent and Medway 
access services provided outside the area (for example, tertiary 
services in London). 

 
(c)  Key to charts: 
 

Accountability Funding 
 

Page 32



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability - Background Note.  

(d) Chart 1: Current Structure13. 
 
 
 

                                            
13
 Both charts adapted from: House of Commons Library, Research Paper 11/11, Health and 

Social Care Bill, p.7, 
http://www.parliament.uk/briefingpapers/commons/lib/research/rp2011/RP11-011.pdf  

LINk 

Department of Health 

Local 
Authorities  
(social care 

funding from DoH) 
(+ HOSC) 

Primary Care 
Trusts  
(Note 2) 

  

Care Quality 
Commission 

  

Monitor 
(regulates 
Foundation 
Trusts) 

   

Strategic Health 
Authorities 
(Note 1) 

Providers: NHS 
Trusts  
(Note 3) 

  

Other providers: 
  

Includes primary medical 
services, dentists, opticians, 
pharmacists, voluntary and 
private providers. 

Providers: 
NHS 

Foundation 
Trusts  
(Note 4) 

  

Page 33



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability - Background Note.  

(e) Chart 2: Proposed future structure: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Summary Transition Timeline14 
 
(a) 2011/12: Learning and planning for roll-out  

• First year of QIPP delivery as part of broader delivery on 
Operating Framework priorities. 

• SHAs to establish PCT cluster arrangements by June 2011. 

• High level structure for NHS Commissioning Board and 
Department of Health set out in Spring 2011.  

• NHS Commissioning Board executive appointments completed 
by October 2011. 

• Shadow national arrangements progressively implemented for 
the NHS Commissioning Board, new Monitor, Public Health 
England, Health Education England and the Provider 
Development Authority. 

• Sharing lessons from first wave adopters of consortia pathfinder 
and early implementer systems of health and wellbeing boards.  

• More pathfinders and early implementers, including local 
HealthWatch.  

• Plans drawn up for consortia, involving all GP practices.  

• Emerging consortia to lead the process of securing staff, 
including PCT staff being made available. 

                                            
14
 Taken from Dear Colleague Letter from Sir David Nicholson, NHS Chief Executive, Equity 

and Excellence: Liberating the NHS – Managing the Transition,  17 February 2011, p.12-13, 
http://www.dh.gov.uk/prod_consum_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/documents/digitalasset/dh_1
24479.pdf 

Department of Health 

Local Authorities 
(+ Health and Wellbeing 

Boards) 
(+ health scrutiny) 

  

GP  Consortia 
  

Care Quality 
Commission 
(+ HealthWatch 
England) 

Monitor 
  

NHS Commissioning 
Board 

Other providers 

Local 
HealthWatch 

NHS Foundation Trusts 
  

Page 34



Item 8: NHS Financial Sustainability - Background Note.  

• Plans to be drawn up for health and wellbeing boards.  

• NHS trusts to apply for foundation trust status, or be planning 
application in 2012/13.  

 
(b) 2012/13: Full preparatory year  
 

• Second year of QIPP delivery.  

• From April 2012, NHS Commissioning Board and new Monitor 
come into effect, SHAs are abolished, PCT clusters become 
accountable to the Board, and the Department will have made 
substantial progress on its change programme and established 
Public Health England. The Provider Development Authority 
oversees NHS Trusts.  

• More learning from GP pathfinders and health and wellbeing 
board early implementers.  

• Authorisation process of comprehensive system of consortia 
begins, with all practices as members, acting under delegated 
arrangements with PCTs.  

• Health and wellbeing boards are in place. 

• Comprehensive local HealthWatch arrangements in place.  

• From April 2012, local authorities to fund local HealthWatch to 
deliver most of their new functions.  

• Consortia notified of 2013/14 allocations.  

• By the end of the year, a significant number of NHS trusts have 
achieved foundation trust status.  

 
(c) 2013/14: First full year of the new system  
 

• Third year of QIPP delivery.  

• April 2013, PCTs abolished and all consortia assume new 
statutory responsibilities.  

• April 2013, health and well being boards assume their statutory 
responsibilities.  

• April 2013, Monitor’s licensing regime is fully operational.  

• April 2013, local authorities to have responsibility for 
commissioning NHS complaints advocacy.  

• By March 2014, the firm aim is that all NHS trusts have become 
foundation trusts. NHS trust legislation is repealed, and the 
Provider Development Authority ceases to exist.  

 
 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



P
C

T
 R

ev
en

u
e 

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

2
0

1
1

-1
2

 

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I

T
o

ta
l 

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 r
ev

en
u

e 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
C

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
lu

s 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 n
o
n



re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

(f
o

r 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 d

en
ta

l 

se
rv

ic
es

,

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
)

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

P
C

T

T
o

ta
l 

re
v

en
u

e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 D

+
E

+
F

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

to
ta

l 

re
v

en
u

e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 F

+
G

) 

G
ro

w
th

  
in

 

to
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

%
 

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

£
0

0
0

s 

N
o

n
-r

ec
u

r
re

n
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 

d
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 

a
n

d

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

£
0

0
0

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

et
w

ee
n

 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 

B
)

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 
B

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

%

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 

C
o

l 
A

) 

D
is

ta
n

ce

fr
o

m
 t

a
rg

et
 

%

A
sh

to
n

, 
L

ei
g

h
 a

n
d

 W
ig

an
 P

C
T

 
5

7
3

,0
7
3

 
1

6
,7

1
2

 
3

.0
%

 
5

4
5

,2
4
9

 
2

3
,4

8
0

 
4

,3
4

4
 

1
2

,3
6

8
 

2
.2

%
 

-2
.7

%
 

B
ar

k
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
ag

en
h

am
 P

C
T

 
3

3
4

,3
5
0

 
9

,1
0

9
 

2
.8

%
3

1
8

,9
7
5

 
1

2
,9

4
3

 
2

,4
3

2
 

6
,6

7
7

 
2

.1
%

 
0

.6
%

 

B
ar

n
et

 P
C

T
 

5
8

2
,4

4
2

 
1

4
,9

7
6

 
2

.6
%

 
5

5
6

,2
3
4

 
2

2
,3

1
9

 
3

,8
8

8
 

1
1

,0
8

7
 

2
.0

%
 

5
.2

%
 

B
ar

n
sl

ey
 P

C
T

 
4

6
3

,3
2
5

 
1

3
,4

0
8

 
3

.0
%

 
4

4
3

,0
1
7

 
1

6
,9

0
6

 
3

,4
0

3
 

1
0

,0
0

5
 

2
.2

%
 

-3
.5

%
 

B
as

se
tl

aw
P

C
T

1
9

3
,8

0
6

 
5

,5
5

8
 

3
.0

%
 

1
8

5
,6

3
6

 
6

,7
9

9
 

1
,3

7
1

 
4

,1
8

7
 

2
.2

%
 

-3
.8

%
 

B
at

h
 a

n
d

 N
o

rt
h

 E
as

t 
S

o
m

er
se

t 
P

C
T

 
2

8
4

,5
1
5

 
7

,3
9

8
 

2
.7

%
 

2
7

0
,2

8
6

 
1

2
,2

4
7

 
1

,9
8

2
 

5
,4

1
6

 
2

.0
%

 
3

.7
%

 

B
ed

fo
rd

sh
ir

e 
P

C
T

 
6

0
9

,4
8
6

 
1

9
,9

3
1

 
3

.4
%

 
5

8
1

,4
8
1

 
2

4
,0

6
6

 
3

,9
3

9
 

1
5

,9
9

2
 

2
.7

%
 

-4
.7

%
 

B
er

k
sh

ir
e 

E
as

t 
P

C
T

 
5

8
4

,6
8
5

 
1

6
,3

1
7

 
2

.9
%

 
5

5
9

,2
3
7

 
2

1
,7

6
9

 
3

,6
7

9
 

1
2

,6
3

8
 

2
.2

%
 

-0
.9

%
 

B
er

k
sh

ir
e 

W
es

t 
P

C
T

 
6

5
9

,1
3
9

 
1

8
,1

3
5

 
2

.8
%

 
6

2
6

,5
6
3

 
2

8
,6

8
7

 
3

,8
8

8
 

1
4

,2
4

6
 

2
.2

%
 

-1
.2

%
 

1

Page 39



 
A

 
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
lu

s 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 n
o
n



re
cu

rr
en

t 

T
o

ta
l 

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 r
ev

en
u

e 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
C

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

(f
o

r 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 d

en
ta

l 

se
rv

ic
es

,

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
)

N
o

n
-r

ec
u

r
re

n
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

P
C

T

T
o

ta
l 

re
v

en
u

e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

to
ta

l 

re
v

en
u

e

G
ro

w
th

  
in

 

to
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

%
 

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

£
0

0
0

s 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 

d
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

et
w

ee
n

 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

D
is

ta
n

ce

fr
o

m
 t

a
rg

et
 

%

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

a
n

d
£

0
0

0
s

%

(C
o

ls
 D

+
E

+
F

) 

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 F

+
G

) 

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 

B
)

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 
B

) 

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 

C
o

l 
A

) 

B
ex

le
y
 C

ar
e 

T
ru

st
 

3
5

5
,8

3
1

 
1

0
,0

9
9

 
2

.9
%

 
3

4
0

,6
8
0

 
1

2
,7

4
1

 
2

,4
1

1
 

7
,6

8
9

 
2

.2
%

 
-0

.9
%

 

B
ir

m
in

g
h

am
 E

as
t 

an
d

 N
o

rt
h

 P
C

T
 

7
4

7
,2

8
6

 
2

2
,1

5
5

 
3

.1
%

 
7

1
3

,3
6
4

 
2

7
,8

9
1

 
6

,0
3

1
 

1
6

,1
2

4
 

2
.2

%
 

-0
.3

%
 

B
la

ck
b

u
rn

 w
it

h
 D

ar
w

en
 T

ea
ch

in
g

 C
ar

e 

T
ru

st
 P

lu
s 

2
9

0
,1

0
9

 
8

,2
9

0
 

2
.9

%
 

2
7

4
,4

8
0

 
1

3
,6

0
0

 
2

,0
2

8
 

6
,2

6
2

 
2

.2
%

 
-0

.7
%

 

B
la

ck
p

o
o

l 
P

C
T

 
2

9
3

,5
8
8

 
8

,7
7

4
 

3
.1

%
 

2
7

9
,8

0
7

 
1

1
,3

4
0

 
2

,4
4

2
 

6
,3

3
2

 
2

.2
%

 
-1

.1
%

 

B
o

lt
o

n
 P

C
T

 
4

8
8

,6
9
1

 
1

4
,2

5
0

 
3

.0
%

 
4

6
6

,8
3
7

 
1

8
,1

5
4

 
3

,7
0

0
 

1
0

,5
5

0
 

2
.2

%
 

-2
.9

%
 

B
o

u
rn

em
o

u
th

 a
n

d
 P

o
o

le
 T

ea
ch

in
g

 P
C

T
 

5
7

3
,6

4
7

 
1

6
,1

3
2

2
.9

%
5

4
7

,2
2
5

2
2

,3
8

5
4

,0
3

7
1

2
,0

9
5

2
.2

%
0

.2
%

B
ra

d
fo

rd
 a

n
d

 A
ir

ed
al

e 
T

ea
ch

in
g

 P
C

T
 

9
0

6
,4

4
6

 
2

5
,4

7
5

2
.9

%
8

6
3

,5
5
2

 
3

6
,6

5
8

6
,2

3
5

1
9

,2
3

9
2

.2
%

0
.1

%

B
re

n
t 

T
ea

ch
in

g
 P

C
T

 
5

5
4

,2
2
8

 
1

3
,9

6
9

 
2

.6
%

 
5

3
0

,2
0
5

 
2

0
,6

0
9

 
3

,4
1

4
 

1
0

,5
5

5
 

2
.0

%
 

1
5

.0
%

 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 a
n

d
 H

o
v

e 
C

it
y
 P

C
T

 
4

8
1

,6
8
8

 
1

2
,4

5
4

 
2

.7
%

 
4

6
0

,0
4
4

 
1

8
,3

5
8

 
3

,2
8

5
 

9
,1

6
8

 
2

.0
%

 
6

.1
%

 

B
ri

st
o

l 
P

C
T

 
7

2
8

,9
0
7

 
2

1
,2

9
6

 
3

.0
%

 
6

9
4

,0
8
8

 
2

9
,2

5
4

 
5

,5
6

5
 

1
5

,7
3

1
 

2
.2

%
 

-4
.6

%
 

B
ro

m
le

y
 P

C
T

 
5

1
1

,4
9
4

 
1

2
,9

1
5

 
2

.6
%

 
4

9
1

,2
6
1

 
1

7
,0

5
7

 
3

,1
7

6
 

9
,7

3
9

 
2

.0
%

 
3

.6
%

 

B
u

ck
in

g
h

am
sh

ir
e 

P
C

T
 

7
1

8
,1

9
5

 
2

0
,1

8
8

 
2

.9
%

 
6

8
5

,3
6
5

 
2

8
,1

6
1

 
4

,6
6

9
 

1
5

,5
1

9
 

2
.2

%
 

-1
.9

%
 

B
u

ry
 P

C
T

 
3

1
6

,1
5
2

 
9

,0
4

3
 

2
.9

%
 

3
0

0
,1

2
7

 
1

3
,8

0
7

 
2

,2
1

8
 

6
,8

2
5

 
2

.2
%

 
-3

.5
%

 

C
al

d
er

d
al

e 
P

C
T

 
3

4
7

,4
7
3

 
9

,1
9

5
 

2
.7

%
 

3
3

0
,8

3
0

 
1

4
,1

2
1

 
2

,5
2

3
 

6
,6

7
2

 
2

.0
%

 
1

.2
%

 

C
am

b
ri

d
g

es
h

ir
e 

P
C

T
 

8
7

6
,5

7
6

 
2

5
,1

7
4

 
3

.0
%

 
8

3
7

,9
9
2

 
3

2
,3

4
3

 
6

,2
4

2
 

1
8

,9
3

3
 

2
.2

%
 

-0
.8

%
 

C
am

d
en

 P
C

T
 

5
0

0
,7

8
8

 
1

2
,9

4
7

 
2

.7
%

 
4

8
3

,1
8
0

 
1

4
,1

8
8

 
3

,4
2

0
 

9
,5

2
7

 
2

.0
%

 
1

6
.8

%
 

2
 

Page 40



 
A

 
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I

T
o

ta
l 

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 r
ev

en
u

e 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
C

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
lu

s 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 n
o
n



re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

(f
o

r 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 d

en
ta

l 

se
rv

ic
es

,

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
)

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

P
C

T

T
o

ta
l 

re
v

en
u

e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 D

+
E

+
F

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

to
ta

l 

re
v

en
u

e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 F

+
G

) 

G
ro

w
th

  
in

 

to
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

%
 

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

£
0

0
0

s 

N
o

n
-r

ec
u

r
re

n
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 

d
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 

a
n

d

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

£
0

0
0

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

et
w

ee
n

 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 

B
)

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 
B

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

%

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 

C
o

l 
A

) 

D
is

ta
n

ce

fr
o

m
 t

a
rg

et
 

%

C
en

tr
al

 a
n

d
 E

as
te

rn
 C

h
es

h
ir

e 
P

C
T

 
7

2
5

,6
2
4

 
1

9
,8

8
9

 
2

.8
%

 
6

8
8

,8
5
9

 
3

1
,7

0
8

 
5

,0
5

6
 

1
4

,8
3

2
 

2
.1

%
 

0
.4

%
 

C
en

tr
al

 L
an

ca
sh

ir
e 

P
C

T
 

7
6

9
,6

7
7

 
2

2
,5

0
1

 
3

.0
%

 
7

3
0

,6
5
7

 
3

3
,1

2
5

 
5

,8
9

4
 

1
6

,6
0

7
 

2
.2

%
 

-1
.4

%
 

C
it

y
 a

n
d

 H
ac

k
n

ey
 T

ea
ch

in
g

 P
C

T
 

5
2

4
,4

4
7

 
1

3
,8

1
7

2
.7

%
5

0
5

,0
8
5

 
1

5
,5

1
8

3
,8

4
4

9
,9

7
2

2
.0

%
9

.4
%

C
o

rn
w

al
l 

an
d

 I
sl

es
 o

f 
S

ci
ll

y
 P

C
T

 
9

1
6

,1
3

6
2

7
,5

2
3

3
.1

%
8

7
3

,2
3
6

 
3

5
,1

3
5

7
,7

6
6

1
9

,7
5

8
2

.2
%

-2
.2

%
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

am
 P

C
T

 
9

9
0

,8
4
2

 
2

9
,0

8
8

 
3

.0
%

 
9

4
8

,4
9
8

 
3

4
,6

4
6

 
7

,6
9

8
 

2
1

,3
9

0
 

2
.2

%
 

-3
.5

%
 

C
o

v
en

tr
y
 T

ea
ch

in
g

 P
C

T
 

5
9

5
,0

8
6

 
1

5
,5

6
5

 
2

.7
%

5
6

8
,2

9
7

 
2

2
,5

4
7

 
4

,2
4

2
 

1
1

,3
2

3
 

2
.0

%
 

3
.3

%
 

C
ro

y
d

o
n

 P
C

T
 

5
7

7
,3

2
6

 
1

6
,1

9
0

 
2

.9
%

 
5

5
1

,3
2
1

 
2

2
,2

9
1

 
3

,7
1

4
 

1
2

,4
7

6
 

2
.2

%
 

-0
.5

%
 

C
u

m
b

ri
a 

T
ea

ch
in

g
 P

C
T

 
8

6
8

,6
7
4

 
2

5
,7

0
1

3
.0

%
8

2
9

,2
9
2

 
3

2
,4

2
5

6
,9

5
6

1
8

,7
4

4
2

.2
%

-2
.4

%
 

D
ar

li
n

g
to

n
 P

C
T

1
8

4
,1

8
1

 
5

,3
3

5
 

3
.0

%
 

1
7

4
,0

7
5

 
8

,7
4

5
 

1
,3

6
2

 
3

,9
7

4
 

2
.2

%
 

-0
.9

%
 

D
er

b
y

 C
it

y
 P

C
T

 
4

5
7

,1
8
3

 
1

9
,1

3
0

 
4

.4
%

 
4

3
7

,6
1
3

 
1

6
,3

7
5

 
3

,1
9

4
 

1
5

,9
3

5
 

3
.7

%
 

-4
.7

%
 

D
er

b
y
sh

ir
e 

C
o

u
n

ty
 P

C
T

 
1

,1
7

3
,2

9
6

 
3

4
,8

4
7

 
3

.1
%

 
1

,1
1

8
,4

4
6

 
4

5
,3

1
5

 
9

,5
3

5
 

2
5

,3
1

2
 

2
.2

%
 

-4
.7

%
 

D
ev

o
n

 P
C

T
 

1
,2

2
6

,9
3
3

 
3

4
,9

4
7

 
2

.9
%

 
1

,1
6

7
,5

8
9

 
4

9
,6

7
3

 
9

,6
7

2
 

2
5

,2
7

5
 

2
.1

%
 

0
.3

%
 

D
o

n
ca

st
er

 P
C

T
 

5
6

1
,1

9
6

 
1

6
,1

7
1

 
3

.0
%

 
5

3
1

,4
9
3

 
2

5
,6

4
3

 
4

,0
6

0
 

1
2

,1
1

1
 

2
.2

%
 

-2
.7

%
 

D
o

rs
et

 P
C

T
 

6
5

3
,2

5
3

 
1

9
,2

5
7

 
3

.0
%

 
6

2
5

,3
5
8

 
2

2
,7

3
9

 
5

,1
5

6
 

1
4

,1
0

1
 

2
.2

%
 

-0
.4

%
 

D
u

d
le

y
 P

C
T

 
5

1
3

,1
6
5

 
1

5
,3

6
1

 
3

.1
%

 
4

8
9

,0
8
9

 
1

9
,7

8
3

 
4

,2
9

3
 

1
1

,0
6

8
 

2
.2

%
 

-3
.0

%
 

E
al

in
g

 P
C

T
 

6
0

6
,5

8
3

 
1

5
,2

8
3

 
2

.6
%

 
5

7
8

,5
3
5

 
2

4
,3

2
0

 
3

,7
2

8
 

1
1

,5
5

4
 

2
.0

%
 

7
.4

%
 

E
as

t 
L

an
ca

sh
ir

e 
T

ea
ch

in
g

 P
C

T
 

6
9

8
,0

6
6

 
1

8
,5

8
2

 
2

.7
%

 
6

6
4

,9
8
0

 
2

8
,2

1
5

 
4

,8
7

1
 

1
3

,7
1

1
 

2
.0

%
 

0
.8

%
 

3
 

Page 41



 
A

 
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I

T
o

ta
l 

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 r
ev

en
u

e 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
C

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
lu

s 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 n
o
n



re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

(f
o

r 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 d

en
ta

l 

se
rv

ic
es

,

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
)

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

P
C

T

T
o

ta
l 

re
v

en
u

e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 D

+
E

+
F

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

to
ta

l 

re
v

en
u

e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 F

+
G

) 

G
ro

w
th

  
in

 

to
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

%
 

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

£
0

0
0

s 

N
o

n
-r

ec
u

r
re

n
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 

d
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 

a
n

d

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

£
0

0
0

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

et
w

ee
n

 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 

B
)

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 
B

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

%

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 

C
o

l 
A

) 

D
is

ta
n

ce

fr
o

m
 t

a
rg

et
 

%

E
as

t 
R

id
in

g
 o

f 
Y

o
rk

sh
ir

e 
P

C
T

 
4

8
9

,4
3
7

 
1

4
,5

1
9

 
3

.1
%

 
4

6
5

,3
8
6

 
2

0
,0

9
0

 
3

,9
6

2
 

1
0

,5
5

7
 

2
.2

%
 

-4
.0

%
 

E
as

t 
S

u
ss

ex
 D

o
w

n
s 

an
d

 W
ea

ld
 P

C
T

 
5

6
7

,8
0
2

 
1

5
,3

3
2

 
2

.8
%

 
5

4
2

,6
6
4

 
2

0
,6

5
0

 
4

,4
8

9
 

1
0

,8
4

3
 

2
.0

%
 

1
.4

%
 

E
as

te
rn

 a
n

d
 C

o
as

ta
l 

K
en

t 
P

C
T

 
1

,2
7

7
,3

6
3

 
3

5
,3

4
3

 
2

.8
%

 
1

,2
2

5
,4

4
1

 
4

3
,5

1
0

 
8

,4
1

2
 

2
6

,9
3

1
 

2
.2

%
 

0
.2

%
 

E
n

fi
el

d
 P

C
T

 
4

8
7

,2
8
6

 
1

4
,0

0
5

 
3

.0
%

 
4

6
4

,5
4
9

 
1

9
,2

5
4

 
3

,4
8

3
 

1
0

,5
2

2
 

2
.2

%
 

-0
.6

%
 

G
at

es
h

ea
d

 P
C

T
 

3
9

3
,0

0
2

 
1

0
,5

8
2

 
2

.8
%

 
3

7
5

,7
7
8

 
1

4
,1

6
2

 
3

,0
6

1
 

7
,5

2
1

 
2

.0
%

 
1

.3
%

 

G
lo

u
ce

st
er

sh
ir

e 
P

C
T

 
9

1
7

,9
0
5

 
2

6
,4

7
9

 
3

.0
%

 
8

7
6

,4
6
6

 
3

4
,6

6
9

 
6

,7
7

0
 

1
9

,7
1

0
 

2
.2

%
 

0
.0

%
 

G
re

at
 Y

ar
m

o
u

th
 a

n
d

 W
av

en
ey

 P
C

T
 

4
0

1
,8

3
9

 
1

1
,4

4
3

 
2

.9
%

 
3

8
2

,1
1
6

 
1

6
,9

5
8

 
2

,7
6

6
 

8
,6

7
7

 
2

.2
%

 
-3

.8
%

 

G
re

en
w

ic
h

 T
ea

ch
in

g
 P

C
T

 
4

7
0

,1
6
2

 
1

2
,4

3
5

2
.7

%
4

4
9

,6
1
8

 
1

7
,0

5
2

3
,4

9
2

8
,9

4
2

2
.0

%
4

.8
%

H
al

to
n

 a
n

d
 S

t 
H

el
en

s 
P

C
T

 
5

9
8

,6
7
6

 
1

7
,2

7
9

3
.0

%
 

5
7

1
,6

8
6

 
2

2
,6

3
9

 
4

,3
5

1
 

1
2

,9
2

8
 

2
.2

%
 

-1
.7

%
 

H
am

m
er

sm
it

h
 a

n
d

 F
u

lh
am

 P
C

T
 

3
6

1
,5

1
6

 
9

,3
6

4
 

2
.7

%
 

3
4

5
,9

8
0

 
1

3
,0

5
2

 
2

,4
8

4
 

6
,8

8
0

 
2

.0
%

 
2

2
.5

%
 

H
am

p
sh

ir
e 

P
C

T
 

1
,8

8
1

,5
4
4

 
5

3
,3

0
4

 
2

.9
%

 
1

,7
9

7
,2

0
7

 
7

1
,6

8
4

 
1

2
,6

5
3

 
4

0
,6

5
1

 
2

.2
%

 
-3

.5
%

 

H
ar

in
g

ey
 T

ea
ch

in
g

 P
C

T
 

4
7

4
,9

0
1

 
1

2
,0

5
4

2
.6

%
4

5
1

,4
8
4

 
2

0
,4

4
7

2
,9

7
0

9
,0

8
4

2
.0

%
1

.4
%

H
ar

ro
w

 P
C

T
 

3
4

8
,7

3
7

 
9

,2
3

5
 

2
.7

%
 

3
3

1
,6

4
0

 
1

4
,4

9
6

 
2

,6
0

1
 

6
,6

3
4

 
2

.0
%

 
2

.4
%

 

H
ar

tl
ep

o
o

l 
P

C
T

1
8

3
,1

2
6

 
5

,2
7

3
 

3
.0

%
 

1
7

4
,2

8
7

 
7

,5
2

0
 

1
,3

1
9

 
3

,9
5

4
 

2
.2

%
 

-1
.2

%
 

H
as

ti
n

g
s 

an
d

 R
o

th
er

 P
C

T
 

3
3

3
,7

6
5

 
8

,8
2

1
 

2
.7

%
 

3
2

0
,0

8
1

 
1

1
,2

9
1

 
2

,3
9

3
 

6
,4

2
8

 
2

.0
%

 
1

.1
%

 

H
av

er
in

g
 P

C
T

 
4

1
6

,8
1
9

 
1

1
,6

7
4

 
2

.9
%

 
3

9
7

,7
2
4

 
1

6
,4

2
8

 
2

,6
6

7
 

9
,0

0
7

 
2

.2
%

 
-1

.6
%

 

H
ea

rt
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g

h
am

 T
ea

ch
in

g
 P

C
T

 
5

7
8

,3
9
9

 
1

5
,3

7
5

2
.7

%
5

4
8

,8
8
1

 
2

5
,1

4
6

4
,3

7
2

1
1

,0
0

4
2

.0
%

1
0

.9
%

4
 

Page 42



 
A

 
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I

T
o

ta
l 

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 r
ev

en
u

e 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
C

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
lu

s 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 n
o
n



re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

(f
o

r 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 d

en
ta

l 

se
rv

ic
es

,

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
)

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

P
C

T

T
o

ta
l 

re
v

en
u

e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 D

+
E

+
F

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

to
ta

l 

re
v

en
u

e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 F

+
G

) 

G
ro

w
th

  
in

 

to
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

%
 

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

£
0

0
0

s 

N
o

n
-r

ec
u

r
re

n
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 

d
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 

a
n

d

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

£
0

0
0

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

et
w

ee
n

 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 

B
)

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 
B

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

%

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 

C
o

l 
A

) 

D
is

ta
n

ce

fr
o

m
 t

a
rg

et
 

%

H
er

ef
o

rd
sh

ir
e 

P
C

T
 

2
8

9
,6

7
7

 
8

,6
1

4
 

3
.1

%
 

2
7

4
,4

9
0

 
1

2
,8

2
0

 
2

,3
6

8
 

6
,2

4
6

 
2

.2
%

 
-2

.8
%

 

H
er

tf
o

rd
sh

ir
e 

P
C

T
1

,6
9

9
,9

1
8

 
4

7
,7

4
5

 
2

.9
%

 
1

,6
1

5
,3

1
0

 
7

3
,5

8
3

 
1

1
,0

2
5

 
3

6
,7

2
0

 
2

.2
%

 
-0

.3
%

 

H
ey

w
o

o
d

, 
M

id
d

le
to

n
 a

n
d

 R
o

ch
d

al
e 

P
C

T
 

3
9

6
,7

6
3

1
1

,5
4

8
 

3
.0

%
 

3
7

9
,2

3
6

 
1

4
,5

4
5

 
2

,9
8

2
 

8
,5

6
6

 
2

.2
%

 
-0

.9
%

 

H
il

li
n

g
d

o
n

 P
C

T
 

4
1

8
,5

0
1

 
1

0
,6

9
4

2
.6

%
4

0
1

,0
3
8

 
1

4
,7

3
6

2
,7

2
8

7
,9

6
7

2
.0

%
2

.5
%

H
o

u
n

sl
o

w
 P

C
T

 
4

0
4

,8
5
7

 
1

0
,2

6
1

 
2

.6
%

 
3

8
3

,5
2
7

 
1

8
,7

8
2

 
2

,5
4

8
 

7
,7

1
3

 
2

.0
%

 
1

.8
%

 

H
u

ll
 T

ea
ch

in
g

 P
C

T
 

5
1

0
,3

3
2

 
1

5
,0

7
0

3
.0

%
4

8
4

,7
8
3

 
2

1
,4

8
8

4
,0

6
2

1
1

,0
0

8
2

.2
%

-2
.7

%
 

Is
le

 o
f 

W
ig

h
t 

N
H

S
 P

C
T

 
2

6
1

,2
5
9

 
7

,7
6

8
 

3
.1

%
 

2
4

9
,8

9
3

 
9

,2
3

6
 

2
,1

3
0

 
5

,6
3

8
 

2
.2

%
 

-0
.8

%
 

Is
li

n
g

to
n

 P
C

T
 

4
5

0
,7

5
8

 
1

1
,8

2
0

 
2

.7
%

 
4

3
5

,0
3
8

 
1

2
,4

7
2

 
3

,2
4

8
 

8
,5

7
2

 
2

.0
%

 
1

4
.1

%
 

K
en

si
n

g
to

n
 a

n
d

 C
h

el
se

a 
P

C
T

 
3

6
8

,2
8
1

 
9

,7
2

7
 

2
.7

%
 

3
5

8
,0

6
8

 
7

,4
8

5
 

2
,7

2
7

 
6

,9
9

9
 

2
.0

%
 

2
0

.6
%

 

K
in

g
st

o
n

P
C

T
2

7
4

,1
7
6

 
6

,7
3

5
 

2
.5

%
 

2
6

3
,9

6
9

 
8

,6
9

6
 

1
,5

1
2

 
5

,2
2

4
 

2
.0

%
 

7
.7

%
 

K
ir

k
le

es
 P

C
T

 
6

7
8

,2
3
9

 
1

9
,6

2
0

 
3

.0
%

 
6

4
4

,1
8
6

 
2

9
,0

7
2

 
4

,9
8

2
 

1
4

,6
3

9
 

2
.2

%
 

-0
.7

%
 

K
n

o
w

sl
ey

 P
C

T
 

3
3

4
,8

4
0

 
9

,1
4

4
 

2
.8

%
 

3
2

0
,5

2
5

 
1

1
,5

8
9

 
2

,7
2

6
 

6
,4

1
8

 
2

.0
%

 
1

.2
%

 

L
am

b
et

h
 P

C
T

 
6

3
6

,4
2
8

 
1

6
,0

8
6

 
2

.6
%

 
6

1
3

,5
3
6

 
1

8
,9

2
1

 
3

,9
7

1
 

1
2

,1
1

5
 

2
.0

%
 

8
.0

%
 

L
ee

d
s 

P
C

T
 

1
,3

1
2

,9
9
4

 
3

7
,6

7
0

 
3

.0
%

 
1

,2
5

2
,7

7
8

 
5

0
,9

0
2

 
9

,3
1

5
 

2
8

,3
5

5
 

2
.2

%
 

-0
.4

%
 

L
ei

ce
st

er
 C

it
y
 P

C
T

 
5

4
8

,0
6
0

 
1

8
,2

4
0

 
3

.4
%

 
5

1
9

,9
7
5

 
2

3
,8

3
5

 
4

,2
5

0
 

1
3

,9
9

0
 

2
.7

%
 

-4
.7

%
 

L
ei

ce
st

er
sh

ir
e 

C
o

u
n

ty
 a

n
d

 R
u

tl
an

d
 P

C
T

 
9

3
2

,0
8
1

 
2

6
,9

1
8

 
3

.0
%

 
8

8
9

,0
4
1

 
3

6
,2

4
7

 
6

,7
9

3
 

2
0

,1
2

5
 

2
.2

%
 

-4
.1

%
 

L
ew

is
h

am
 P

C
T

 
5

3
5

,8
7
8

 
1

3
,8

5
3

 
2

.7
%

 
5

1
2

,1
5
0

 
2

0
,0

7
4

 
3

,6
5

4
 

1
0

,1
9

9
 

2
.0

%
 

6
.6

%
 

5
 

Page 43



 
A

 
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I

T
o

ta
l 

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 r
ev

en
u

e 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
C

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
lu

s 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 n
o
n



re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

(f
o

r 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 d

en
ta

l 

se
rv

ic
es

,

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
)

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

P
C

T

T
o

ta
l 

re
v

en
u

e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 D

+
E

+
F

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

to
ta

l 

re
v

en
u

e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 F

+
G

) 

G
ro

w
th

  
in

 

to
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

%
 

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

£
0

0
0

s 

N
o

n
-r

ec
u

r
re

n
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 

d
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 

a
n

d

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

£
0

0
0

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

et
w

ee
n

 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 

B
)

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 
B

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

%

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 

C
o

l 
A

) 

D
is

ta
n

ce

fr
o

m
 t

a
rg

et
 

%

L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e 
T

ea
ch

in
g

 P
C

T
 

1
,1

9
5

,0
7
7

 
3

4
,9

0
0

 
3

.0
%

 
1

,1
4

7
,1

7
6

 
3

8
,8

1
0

 
9

,0
9

2
 

2
5

,8
0

8
 

2
.2

%
 

-2
.2

%
 

L
iv

er
p

o
o

l 
P

C
T

 
1

,0
0

6
,3

4
6

 
2

7
,2

4
2

 
2

.8
%

 
9

5
9

,6
8
0

 
3

8
,5

5
4

 
8

,1
1

2
 

1
9

,1
3

0
 

2
.0

%
 

3
.1

%
 

L
u

to
n

 P
C

T
 

3
1

8
,2

6
4

 
8

,9
2

2
 

2
.9

%
 

3
0

2
,1

8
5

 
1

4
,0

3
2

 
2

,0
4

7
 

6
,8

7
5

 
2

.2
%

 
-2

.8
%

 

M
an

ch
es

te
r 

P
C

T
 

1
,0

3
2

,5
1
0

 
2

9
,6

7
3

 
3

.0
%

 
9

8
7

,1
9
7

 
3

7
,9

4
0

 
7

,3
7

2
 

2
2

,3
0

0
 

2
.2

%
 

-0
.3

%
 

M
ed

w
ay

 P
C

T
 

4
3

5
,2

7
9

 
1

1
,9

7
0

 
2

.8
%

 
4

1
3

,4
6
5

 
1

9
,2

5
2

 
2

,5
6

2
 

9
,4

0
8

 
2

.2
%

 
-1

.5
%

 

M
id

 E
ss

ex
 P

C
T

 
5

1
9

,6
3
8

 
1

5
,9

4
2

 
3

.2
%

 
4

9
2

,8
7
6

 
2

2
,4

8
3

 
4

,2
8

0
 

1
1

,6
6

2
 

2
.3

%
 

-4
.7

%
 

M
id

d
le

sb
ro

u
g

h
 P

C
T

 
2

9
1

,6
8
0

 
8

,1
9

1
 

2
.9

%
 

2
7

6
,5

1
2

 
1

3
,0

8
8

 
2

,0
8

1
 

6
,1

1
1

 
2

.2
%

 
0

.2
%

 

M
il

to
n

 K
ey

n
es

 P
C

T
 

3
6

0
,4

1
7

 
1

0
,2

2
1

 
2

.9
%

 
3

4
2

,6
9
8

 
1

5
,2

8
2

 
2

,4
3

7
 

7
,7

8
4

 
2

.2
%

 
-3

.6
%

 

N
ew

ca
st

le
 P

C
T

 
5

1
2

,0
0
7

 
1

3
,8

6
8

 
2

.8
%

 
4

8
7

,8
7
1

 
2

0
,0

0
2

 
4

,1
3

4
 

9
,7

3
3

 
2

.0
%

 
2

.1
%

 

N
ew

h
am

 P
C

T
 

5
6

7
,5

1
3

 
1

4
,3

8
1

 
2

.6
%

 
5

4
0

,9
4
4

 
2

2
,9

9
7

 
3

,5
7

2
 

1
0

,8
0

9
 

2
.0

%
 

1
3

.5
%

 

N
o

rf
o

lk
 P

C
T

1
,1

9
7

,6
3
6

 
5

4
,2

2
4

 
4

.7
%

 
1

,1
4

3
,8

2
1

 
4

3
,7

5
4

 
1

0
,0

6
1

 
4

4
,1

6
3

 
3

.9
%

 
-4

.7
%

 

N
o

rt
h

 E
as

t 
E

ss
ex

 P
C

T
 

5
4

6
,7

2
3

 
2

5
,1

2
3

 
4

.8
%

 
5

2
1

,6
8
4

 
2

1
,2

7
6

 
3

,7
6

2
 

2
1

,3
6

1
 

4
.2

%
 

-5
.0

%
 

N
o

rt
h

 E
as

t 
L

in
co

ln
sh

ir
e 

C
ar

e 
T

ru
st

 P
lu

s 
2

8
8

,7
7
5

 
7

,6
6

0
 

2
.7

%
 

2
7

5
,3

0
9

 
1

1
,3

4
5

 
2

,1
2

2
 

5
,5

3
8

 
2

.0
%

 
1

.2
%

 

N
o

rt
h

 L
an

ca
sh

ir
e 

T
ea

ch
in

g
 P

C
T

 
5

7
7

,4
5
3

 
1

6
,6

8
3

3
.0

%
5

5
2

,3
9
5

 
2

0
,8

4
6

4
,2

1
2

1
2

,4
7

1
2

.2
%

-1
.1

%
 

N
o

rt
h

 L
in

co
ln

sh
ir

e 
P

C
T

 
2

6
7

,8
2
0

 
7

,7
7

0
 

3
.0

%
 

2
5

6
,0

7
0

 
9

,7
6

3
 

1
,9

8
7

 
5

,7
8

3
 

2
.2

%
 

-3
.2

%
 

N
o

rt
h

 S
o

m
er

se
t 

P
C

T
 

3
2

8
,4

6
5

 
1

5
,3

6
1

 
4

.9
%

 
3

1
3

,1
4
5

 
1

2
,7

8
1

 
2

,5
3

9
 

1
2

,8
2

2
 

4
.2

%
 

-7
.2

%
 

N
o

rt
h

 S
ta

ff
o

rd
sh

ir
e 

P
C

T
 

3
4

7
,8

9
4

 
9

,9
6

5
 

2
.9

%
 

3
3

3
,1

9
1

 
1

2
,2

5
3

 
2

,4
4

9
 

7
,5

1
6

 
2

.2
%

 
-4

.1
%

 

6
 

Page 44



 
A

 
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I

T
o

ta
l 

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 r
ev

en
u

e 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
C

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
lu

s 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 n
o
n



re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

(f
o

r 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 d

en
ta

l 

se
rv

ic
es

,

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
)

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

P
C

T

T
o

ta
l 

re
v

en
u

e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 D

+
E

+
F

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

to
ta

l 

re
v

en
u

e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 F

+
G

) 

G
ro

w
th

  
in

 

to
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

%
 

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

£
0

0
0

s 

N
o

n
-r

ec
u

r
re

n
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 

d
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 

a
n

d

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

£
0

0
0

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

et
w

ee
n

 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 

B
)

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 
B

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

%

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 

C
o

l 
A

) 

D
is

ta
n

ce

fr
o

m
 t

a
rg

et
 

%

N
o

rt
h

 T
y
n

es
id

e 
P

C
T

 
3

8
1

,0
9
2

 
1

0
,4

8
5

 
2

.8
%

 
3

6
5

,6
1
5

 
1

2
,6

7
6

 
2

,8
0

2
 

7
,6

8
3

 
2

.1
%

 
0

.5
%

 

N
o

rt
h

 Y
o

rk
sh

ir
e 

an
d

 Y
o

rk
 P

C
T

 
1

,2
0

7
,3

4
8

 
3

4
,6

6
2

 
3

.0
%

 
1

,1
5

1
,5

5
8

 
4

7
,2

0
0

 
8

,5
9

0
 

2
6

,0
7

2
 

2
.2

%
 

-1
.4

%
 

N
o

rt
h

am
p

to
n

sh
ir

e 
T

ea
ch

in
g

 P
C

T
 

1
,0

4
2

,3
4
6

2
9

,7
6

8
2

.9
%

9
9

3
,5

6
0

 
4

1
,5

2
9

7
,2

5
7

2
2

,5
1

1
2

.2
%

-0
.9

%
 

N
o

rt
h

u
m

b
er

la
n

d
 C

ar
e 

T
ru

st
 

5
5

5
,4

8
7

 
1

6
,1

3
0

 
3

.0
%

 
5

2
9

,7
0
8

 
2

1
,6

4
1

 
4

,1
3

8
 

1
1

,9
9

2
 

2
.2

%
 

-2
.6

%
 

N
o

tt
in

g
h

am
 C

it
y
 P

C
T

 
5

5
0

,2
9
4

 
2

1
,5

8
4

 
4

.1
%

 
5

2
2

,3
7
4

 
2

3
,6

6
9

 
4

,2
5

1
 

1
7

,3
3

3
 

3
.3

%
 

-4
.7

%
 

N
o

tt
in

g
h

am
sh

ir
e 

C
o

u
n

ty
 T

ea
ch

in
g

 P
C

T
 

1
,0

6
0

,6
7
7

3
1

,1
4

8
3

.0
%

1
,0

1
4

,0
2
7

 
3

8
,3

9
7

8
,2

5
3

2
2

,8
9

5
2

.2
%

-4
.1

%
 

O
ld

h
am

 P
C

T
 

4
2

2
,1

7
8

 
1

1
,5

2
4

 
2

.8
%

 
4

0
3

,0
2
9

 
1

6
,1

1
3

 
3

,0
3

6
 

8
,4

8
8

 
2

.1
%

 
0

.5
%

 

O
x

fo
rd

sh
ir

e 
P

C
T

 
9

1
2

,8
3
9

 
2

3
,2

7
7

 
2

.6
%

 
8

7
1

,6
5
3

 
3

5
,2

9
0

 
5

,8
9

6
 

1
7

,3
8

1
 

2
.0

%
 

1
.8

%
 

P
et

er
b

o
ro

u
g

h
 P

C
T

 
2

7
5

,9
9
0

 
7

,3
2

1
 

2
.7

%
 

2
5

9
,7

7
0

 
1

4
,1

5
2

 
2

,0
6

8
 

5
,2

5
3

 
2

.0
%

 
1

.8
%

 

P
ly

m
o

u
th

 T
ea

ch
in

g
 P

C
T

 
4

4
5

,9
2
7

 
1

3
,1

4
8

3
.0

%
4

2
3

,4
4
3

 
1

8
,9

5
5

3
,5

2
9

9
,6

1
9

2
.2

%
-3

.7
%

 

P
o

rt
sm

o
u

th
 C

it
y

 T
ea

ch
in

g
 P

C
T

 
3

4
4

,3
4
0

 
9

,8
5

1
2

.9
%

3
2

8
,7

5
5

 
1

3
,1

7
2

2
,4

1
4

7
,4

3
7

2
.2

%
-1

.2
%

 

R
ed

b
ri

d
g

e 
P

C
T

 
4

1
3

,3
4
0

 
1

1
,8

5
0

 
3

.0
%

 
3

9
1

,0
2
7

 
1

9
,3

8
3

 
2

,9
3

0
 

8
,9

2
1

 
2

.2
%

 
-2

.9
%

 

R
ed

ca
r 

an
d

 C
le

v
el

an
d

 P
C

T
 

2
6

1
,8

0
5

 
6

,9
4

3
 

2
.7

%
 

2
4

9
,2

9
0

 
1

0
,5

5
2

 
1

,9
6

3
 

4
,9

8
0

 
2

.0
%

 
2

.2
%

 

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 a

n
d

 T
w

ic
k

en
h

am
 P

C
T

 
2

8
7

,4
6
4

 
7

,2
2

6
 

2
.6

%
 

2
7

7
,7

2
0

 
7

,9
9

1
 

1
,7

5
3

 
5

,4
7

2
 

2
.0

%
 

1
4

.0
%

 

R
o

th
er

h
am

 P
C

T
 

4
5

5
,1

0
7

 
1

3
,4

8
6

 
3

.1
%

 
4

3
5

,2
3
4

 
1

6
,2

0
9

 
3

,6
6

5
 

9
,8

2
1

 
2

.2
%

 
-2

.7
%

 

S
al

fo
rd

 P
C

T
 

4
7

6
,0

5
3

 
1

3
,8

8
5

 
3

.0
%

 
4

5
2

,0
6
9

 
2

0
,3

7
1

 
3

,6
1

2
 

1
0

,2
7

2
 

2
.2

%
 

-1
.5

%
 

S
an

d
w

el
l 

P
C

T
 

5
8

1
,9

9
4

 
1

7
,5

3
5

 
3

.1
%

 
5

5
1

,0
2
1

 
2

5
,9

8
2

 
4

,9
9

1
 

1
2

,5
4

4
 

2
.2

%
 

-3
.4

%
 

7
 

Page 45



 
A

 
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I

T
o

ta
l 

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 r
ev

en
u

e 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
C

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
lu

s 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 n
o
n



re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

(f
o

r 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 d

en
ta

l 

se
rv

ic
es

,

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
)

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

P
C

T

T
o

ta
l 

re
v

en
u

e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 D

+
E

+
F

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

to
ta

l 

re
v

en
u

e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 F

+
G

) 

G
ro

w
th

  
in

 

to
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

%
 

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

£
0

0
0

s 

N
o

n
-r

ec
u

r
re

n
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 

d
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 

a
n

d

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

£
0

0
0

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

et
w

ee
n

 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 

B
)

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 
B

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

%

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 

C
o

l 
A

) 

D
is

ta
n

ce

fr
o

m
 t

a
rg

et
 

%

S
ef

to
n

 P
C

T
 

5
3

6
,0

2
9

 
1

4
,3

6
8

 
2

.8
%

 
5

0
9

,5
0
7

 
2

2
,3

4
8

 
4

,1
7

3
 

1
0

,1
9

4
 

2
.0

%
 

4
.0

%
 

S
h

ef
fi

el
d

 P
C

T
 

9
8

4
,1

8
4

 
2

6
,3

2
4

 
2

.7
%

 
9

3
5

,5
1
4

 
4

1
,0

6
5

 
7

,6
0

5
 

1
8

,7
1

9
 

2
.0

%
 

1
.7

%
 

S
h

ro
p

sh
ir

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 P
C

T
 

4
6

3
,8

0
9

 
1

3
,7

4
9

 
3

.1
%

 
4

4
1

,9
8
0

 
1

8
,0

8
6

 
3

,7
4

2
 

1
0

,0
0

6
 

2
.2

%
 

-2
.8

%
 

S
o

li
h

u
ll

 C
ar

e 
T

ru
st

 
3

2
6

,7
3
6

 
9

,3
6

2
 

2
.9

%
 

3
1

2
,0

1
7

 
1

2
,4

1
3

 
2

,3
0

5
 

7
,0

5
7

 
2

.2
%

 
-0

.7
%

 

S
o

m
er

se
t 

P
C

T
 

8
5

5
,7

6
2

 
2

5
,2

0
1

 
3

.0
%

 
8

1
4

,2
7
0

 
3

4
,7

5
4

 
6

,7
3

7
 

1
8

,4
6

4
 

2
.2

%
 

-1
.0

%
 

S
o

u
th

 B
ir

m
in

g
h

am
 P

C
T

 
6

5
0

,2
3
2

 
1

7
,3

6
6

 
2

.7
%

 
6

2
0

,4
9
7

 
2

4
,7

4
5

 
4

,9
9

0
 

1
2

,3
7

6
 

2
.0

%
 

1
.6

%
 

S
o

u
th

 E
as

t 
E

ss
ex

 P
C

T
 

5
5

7
,0

0
6

 
1

6
,2

1
7

 
3

.0
%

 
5

3
0

,7
2
6

 
2

2
,0

8
6

 
4

,1
9

4
 

1
2

,0
2

3
 

2
.2

%
 

-3
.3

%
 

S
o

u
th

 G
lo

u
ce

st
er

sh
ir

e 
P

C
T

 
3

5
0

,8
2
0

 
1

0
,0

8
5

 
3

.0
%

 
3

3
2

,4
0
8

 
1

5
,8

9
8

 
2

,5
1

3
 

7
,5

7
2

 
2

.2
%

 
-3

.5
%

 

S
o

u
th

 S
ta

ff
o

rd
sh

ir
e 

P
C

T
 

9
3

6
,8

2
5

 
4

0
,6

5
1

 
4

.5
%

 
8

9
4

,1
5
8

 
3

5
,6

3
6

 
7

,0
3

1
 

3
3

,6
2

0
 

3
.8

%
 

-4
.7

%
 

S
o

u
th

 T
y
n

es
id

e 
P

C
T

 
3

1
0

,4
0
7

 
8

,4
4

6
 

2
.8

%
 

2
9

5
,0

0
9

 
1

2
,8

9
3

 
2

,5
0

6
 

5
,9

4
1

 
2

.0
%

 
1

.3
%

 

S
o

u
th

 W
es

t 
E

ss
ex

 P
C

T
 

6
6

6
,9

6
2

 
1

9
,0

6
7

 
2

.9
%

 
6

3
6

,1
4
5

 
2

6
,1

5
4

 
4

,6
6

2
 

1
4

,4
0

5
 

2
.2

%
 

-2
.9

%
 

S
o

u
th

am
p

to
n

 C
it

y
 P

C
T

 
4

0
9

,0
7
7

 
1

1
,9

3
8

 
3

.0
%

 
3

9
2

,0
4
8

 
1

3
,9

2
5

 
3

,1
0

5
 

8
,8

3
3

 
2

.2
%

 
-1

.7
%

 

S
o

u
th

w
ar

k
 P

C
T

 
5

4
2

,1
8
2

 
1

5
,9

8
4

 
3

.0
%

 
5

1
7

,1
5
6

 
2

0
,7

4
2

 
4

,2
8

4
 

1
1

,7
0

0
 

2
.2

%
 

-1
.3

%
 

S
to

ck
p

o
rt

 P
C

T
 

4
8

2
,4

7
5

 
1

3
,1

1
1

 
2

.8
%

 
4

5
7

,7
1
2

 
2

1
,2

6
1

 
3

,5
0

2
 

9
,6

0
9

 
2

.0
%

 
0

.6
%

 

S
to

ck
to

n
-o

n
-T

ee
s 

T
ea

ch
in

g
 P

C
T

3
2

5
,7

5
9

 
9

,3
0

3
2

.9
%

3
0

9
,5

4
9

 
1

3
,9

4
1

2
,2

7
0

7
,0

3
4

2
.2

%
-2

.9
%

 

S
to

k
e 

o
n

 T
re

n
t 

P
C

T
 

5
0

6
,4

3
2

 
2

3
,6

1
0

 
4

.9
%

 
4

8
5

,7
3
8

 
1

6
,9

1
5

 
3

,7
7

9
 

1
9

,8
3

1
 

4
.2

%
 

-5
.5

%
 

S
u

ff
o

lk
 P

C
T

 
9

1
7

,5
7
0

 
2

7
,1

0
4

 
3

.0
%

 
8

7
8

,1
9
2

 
3

2
,0

7
8

 
7

,3
0

0
 

1
9

,8
0

4
 

2
.2

%
 

-4
.0

%
 

8
 

Page 46



 
A

 
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I

T
o

ta
l 

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 r
ev

en
u

e 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
C

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
lu

s 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 n
o
n



re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

(f
o

r 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 d

en
ta

l 

se
rv

ic
es

,

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
)

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

P
C

T

T
o

ta
l 

re
v

en
u

e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 D

+
E

+
F

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

to
ta

l 

re
v

en
u

e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 F

+
G

) 

G
ro

w
th

  
in

 

to
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

%
 

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

£
0

0
0

s 

N
o

n
-r

ec
u

r
re

n
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 

d
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 

a
n

d

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

£
0

0
0

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

et
w

ee
n

 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 

B
)

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 
B

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

%

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 

C
o

l 
A

) 

D
is

ta
n

ce

fr
o

m
 t

a
rg

et
 

%

S
u

n
d

er
la

n
d

 T
ea

ch
in

g
 P

C
T

 
5

6
2

,6
4
2

 
1

6
,0

5
5

2
.9

%
5

3
7

,0
3
1

 
2

1
,2

7
1

4
,3

3
9

1
1

,7
1

6
2

.1
%

0
.2

%

S
u

rr
ey

 P
C

T
1

,6
8

3
,1

8
6

 
4

2
,5

3
5

 
2

.6
%

 
1

,6
1

5
,0

2
5

 
5

7
,6

7
6

 
1

0
,4

8
6

 
3

2
,0

4
9

 
2

.0
%

 
5

.0
%

 

S
u

tt
o

n
 a

n
d

 M
er

to
n

 P
C

T
 

5
9

6
,1

1
8

 
1

5
,3

7
3

 
2

.6
%

 
5

7
0

,2
4
2

 
2

1
,8

4
9

 
4

,0
2

8
 

1
1

,3
4

6
 

2
.0

%
 

3
.5

%
 

S
w

in
d

o
n

 P
C

T
 

3
1

0
,2

8
7

 
8

,7
6

7
 

2
.9

%
 

2
9

6
,6

5
5

 
1

1
,5

6
9

 
2

,0
6

2
 

6
,7

0
5

 
2

.2
%

 
-3

.6
%

 

T
am

es
id

e 
an

d
 G

lo
ss

o
p

 P
C

T
 

4
2

9
,9

4
0

 
1

2
,8

7
9

 
3

.1
%

 
4

0
7

,4
7
0

 
1

8
,8

6
0

 
3

,6
1

0
 

9
,2

6
9

 
2

.2
%

 
-1

.5
%

 

T
el

fo
rd

 a
n

d
 W

re
k

in
 P

C
T

 
2

6
5

,2
2
9

 
7

,8
2

7
 

3
.0

%
 

2
5

0
,6

3
0

 
1

2
,4

9
1

 
2

,1
0

8
 

5
,7

1
9

 
2

.2
%

 
-3

.8
%

 

T
o

rb
ay

 C
ar

e 
T

ru
st

 
2

6
8

,0
9
3

 
8

,0
6

2
 

3
.1

%
 

2
5

4
,9

4
8

 
1

0
,8

2
4

 
2

,3
2

2
 

5
,7

4
1

 
2

.2
%

 
0

.0
%

 

T
o

w
er

 H
am

le
ts

 P
C

T
 

4
9

9
,5

4
4

 
1

3
,2

2
7

 
2

.7
%

 
4

7
7

,2
3
8

 
1

8
,5

8
0

 
3

,7
2

5
 

9
,5

0
1

 
2

.0
%

 
9

.3
%

 

T
ra

ff
o

rd
 P

C
T

 
3

7
9

,3
2
2

 
9

,8
1

7
 

2
.7

%
 

3
5

9
,8

7
3

 
1

6
,8

5
4

 
2

,5
9

5
 

7
,2

2
2

 
2

.0
%

 
7

.6
%

 

W
ak

ef
ie

ld
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

P
C

T
 

6
2

9
,7

4
8

 
1

8
,1

7
1

 
3

.0
%

 
5

9
9

,8
1
7

 
2

5
,3

5
6

 
4

,5
7

5
 

1
3

,5
9

6
 

2
.2

%
 

-3
.7

%
 

W
al

sa
ll

 T
ea

ch
in

g
 P

C
T

 
4

7
3

,1
5
5

 
1

3
,5

9
0

 
3

.0
%

 
4

5
1

,6
0
8

 
1

7
,6

7
4

 
3

,8
7

4
 

9
,7

1
7

 
2

.1
%

 
0

.3
%

 

W
al

th
a
m

 F
o

re
st

 P
C

T
 

4
3

5
,0

4
9

 
1

1
,0

5
2

 
2

.6
%

 
4

1
6

,7
3
5

 
1

5
,5

4
5

 
2

,7
6

8
 

8
,2

8
3

 
2

.0
%

 
2

.5
%

 

W
an

d
sw

o
rt

h
 P

C
T

 
5

6
4

,6
3
2

 
1

4
,2

0
4

 
2

.6
%

 
5

4
3

,9
6
1

 
1

7
,2

1
7

 
3

,4
5

4
 

1
0

,7
5

0
 

2
.0

%
 

1
5

.3
%

 

W
ar

ri
n

g
to

n
 P

C
T

 
3

2
5

,1
3
5

 
9

,2
6

2
 

2
.9

%
 

3
0

8
,6

9
5

 
1

4
,1

9
8

 
2

,2
4

2
 

7
,0

2
0

 
2

.2
%

 
-2

.0
%

 

W
ar

w
ic

k
sh

ir
e 

P
C

T
 

8
2

8
,9

9
2

 
2

3
,9

2
1

 
3

.0
%

 
7

8
7

,4
7
4

 
3

5
,4

9
1

 
6

,0
2

7
 

1
7

,8
9

4
 

2
.2

%
 

-1
.5

%
 

W
es

t 
E

ss
ex

 P
C

T
 

4
3

4
,1

4
6

 
1

1
,5

8
3

 
2

.7
%

 
4

1
4

,7
4
9

 
1

6
,1

8
7

 
3

,2
1

0
 

8
,3

7
3

 
2

.0
%

 
1

.1
%

 

W
es

t 
K

en
t 

P
C

T
 

1
,0

2
7

,9
6
2

 
3

0
,0

0
5

 
3

.0
%

 
9

8
1

,7
5
8

 
3

8
,3

9
0

 
7

,8
1

4
 

2
2

,1
9

1
 

2
.2

%
 

-2
.1

%
 

9
 

Page 47



 
A

 
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I

T
o

ta
l 

 2
0

1
1

-1
2

 r
ev

en
u

e 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
C

o
m

p
o

si
ti

o
n

 o
f 

to
ta

l 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

p
lu

s 

g
ro

w
th

 i
n

 n
o
n



re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

(f
o

r 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 d

en
ta

l 

se
rv

ic
es

,

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
n

d
 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
)

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

P
C

T

T
o

ta
l 

re
v

en
u

e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 D

+
E

+
F

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

to
ta

l 

re
v

en
u

e

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

£
0

0
0

s

(C
o

ls
 F

+
G

) 

G
ro

w
th

  
in

 

to
ta

l 
re

v
en

u
e 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

%
 

R
ec

u
rr

en
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

£
0

0
0

s 

N
o

n
-r

ec
u

r
re

n
t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

fo
r 

G
en

er
a

l

O
p

h
th

a
lm

ic
 

S
er

v
ic

es
, 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 

d
en

ta
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 

a
n

d

p
h

a
r
m

a
ce

u
ti

ca
l 

se
rv

ic
es

£
0

0
0

s

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

et
w

ee
n

 

h
ea

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
ci

a
l 

ca
re

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 

B
)

£
0

0
0

s

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 c
o

l 
B

) 

G
ro

w
th

 i
n

 

re
cu

rr
en

t 

a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s

%

(I
n

cl
u

d
ed

 i
n

 

C
o

l 
A

) 

D
is

ta
n

ce

fr
o

m
 t

a
rg

et
 

%

W
es

t 
S

u
ss

ex
 P

C
T

 
1

,2
9

9
,1

2
3

 
3

5
,3

4
5

 
2

.8
%

 
1

,2
3

9
,9

9
7

 
5

0
,3

4
9

 
8

,7
7

6
 

2
6

,5
6

9
 

2
.1

%
 

0
.4

%
 

W
es

te
rn

 C
h

es
h

ir
e 

P
C

T
 

4
1

5
,7

4
9

 
1

0
,7

2
1

 
2

.6
%

 
3

9
4

,9
1
8

 
1

8
,0

2
6

 
2

,8
0

5
 

7
,9

1
6

 
2

.0
%

 
2

.6
%

 

W
es

tm
in

st
er

 P
C

T
 

4
9

3
,5

8
7

 
1

3
,2

5
0

 
2

.8
%

 
4

7
2

,3
6
1

 
1

7
,3

6
0

 
3

,8
6

6
 

9
,3

8
4

 
2

.0
%

 
1

6
.1

%
 

W
il

ts
h

ir
e 

P
C

T
 

6
7

6
,1

8
6

 
1

9
,4

3
0

3
.0

%
 

6
4

6
,0

4
2

 
2

5
,3

1
8

4
,8

2
6

1
4

,6
0

4
2

.2
%

-2
.0

%
 

W
ir

ra
l 

P
C

T
 

6
3

0
,1

6
4

 
1

6
,9

1
1

 
2

.8
%

 
5

9
9

,7
0
5

 
2

5
,5

3
2

 
4

,9
2

8
 

1
1

,9
8

3
 

2
.0

%
 

3
.8

%
 

W
o

lv
er

h
am

p
to

n
 C

it
y
 P

C
T

 
4

5
2

,2
5
8

 
1

3
,5

2
8

 
3

.1
%

 
4

2
9

,8
8
7

 
1

8
,5

9
6

 
3

,7
7

6
 

9
,7

5
3

 
2

.2
%

 
-2

.0
%

 

W
o

rc
es

te
rs

h
ir

e 
P

C
T

 
8

6
4

,0
3
7

 
2

5
,1

3
8

 
3

.0
%

 
8

2
3

,9
0
4

 
3

3
,6

4
7

 
6

,4
8

7
 

1
8

,6
5

1
 

2
.2

%
 

-1
.5

%
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

 
8

9
,0

8
7

,2
3

4
 

2
,5

7
1

,5
7
1

 
3

.0
%

 
8

4
,9

9
6

,0
8

1
 

3
,4

4
3

,1
5
3

 
6

4
8

,0
0
0

 
1

,9
2

3
,5

7
1

 
2

.2
%

 
0

.0
%

 

N
o

te
s: 1
. 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
il

it
y

 a
n

d
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

so
ci

al
 s

er
v

ic
es

 f
o

r 
p

eo
p

le
 w

it
h

 l
ea

rn
in

g
 d

is
ab

il
it

ie
s 

h
as

 b
ee

n
 t

ra
n

sf
er

re
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

N
H

S
 t

o
 l

o
ca

l 
au

th
o
ri

ti
es

. 

G
ro

w
th

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 c

al
cu

la
te

d
 o

v
er

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

 a
ll

o
ca

ti
o
n
s 

af
te

r 
su

b
tr

ac
ti

n
g
 t

h
is

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 2
0

1
0

-1
1

 a
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s,

 a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 a

d
ju

st
in

g
 f

o
r 

tr
an

sf
er

s 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

n
d

 a
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 b
et

w
ee

n
 P

C
T

s.
 

2
. 

T
o

ta
l 

re
v

en
u
e 

al
lo

ca
ti

o
n

s 
in

cl
u

d
e 

re
cu

rr
en

t 
al

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

an
d

 n
o
n

-r
ec

u
rr

en
t 

al
lo

ca
ti

o
n
s 

fo
r 

p
ri

m
ar

y
 d

en
ta

l 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

p
h

ar
m

ac
eu

ti
ca

l 
se

rv
ic

es
, 

G
en

er
al

 O
p

h
th

al
m

ic
 S

er
v

ic
es

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g

 b
et

w
ee

n
 h

ea
lt

h
 a

n
d

 s
o

ci
al

 c
ar

e.
 

1
0

Page 48



Item 8: Report from NHS Eastern and Coastal Kent 

 
 
 
 
 
Response to questions from HOSC for meeting on 25 March 
 
Introduction 
The responses set out below relates to NHS Eastern & Coastal Kent only. 
 
The PCT receives an annual allocation of nearly £1.3bn. Of this, 97% is spent on 
patient care in the acute sector, mental health, ambulance services, continuing care 
placements, childrens services, community services, GP, dental, ophthalmic and 
pharmacy services. The remaining 3% is spent on PCT running costs, including just 
over 1% on management costs.  
 
Responses 
 

1. Why is achieving financial balance across the local health economy important 
and what are the potential consequences of not doing so? 

 
The NHS budget is cash limited. A statutory duty is therefore placed on all 
NHS Organisations to deliver financial balance each year. Allocations to NHS 
commissioners (currently PCTs, but soon to become GP Commissioning 
Consortia) are based on a formula that takes into account population 
numbers, and the demographics of that population. 
 
If an organisation does overspend, it must recover this position in the future 
(over a maximum of three years). It will be seen by the NHS as a failing 
organisation and will be subject to special performance monitoring by the 
NHS. Recovering previous overspends means that there is less money 
available for patient care. 
 

2. What kinds of measures have been taken in 2010/11 in terms of prioritising 
treatments and changing service provision across Kent in order to try and 
achieve financial balance? 
 
In 2010/11 demand in the acute sector in particular, presented NHS Eastern 
& Coastal Kent with a financial challenge. A Turnaround Group was set up in 
September to review all budgets. Commissioning budgets were scrutinised 
for any savings that would not affect patient care. Some investment 
mobilisation plans were deferred, but not abandoned. Consultants and GPs 
were encouraged to switch high cost and prescription drugs (where there was 
sound clinical evidence) to those that represented better value for money. 
 
Non-commissioning budgets were targeted. The management cost reduction 
programme was accelerated, and expenditure on the estate was reviewed, 
although this did not affect the backlog maintenance programme. A review of 
business rates led to a claw-back in excess of £1m from estate across the 
PCT. 
 

 

Page 49



Item 8: Report from NHS Eastern and Coastal Kent 

GPs collaborated and developed referral and treatment criteria. This meant 
that GPs took a more consistent approach when referring patients for 
treatment.  
 

3. What kinds of measures are being considered for 2011/12? 
 

The PCT is working closely with all providers to see how patient pathways 
can be streamlined, but still deliver safe, effective care, often closer to the 
patient’s home. 
The clustering of PCTs from June is expected to help drive down running 
costs further than at first planned. 
 

4. What are the main challenges to achieving financial balance across the 
health economy? 
 
Activity, demand and cost pressures are the main challenges, whilst 
sustaining targets set out in the NHS Constitution such as 18 weeks referral 
to treatment, and cancer waiting times. 
 
This must be managed with a rapidly dwindling management base, and 
during a time of substantial change – to GP Commissioning, and to a single 
PCT cluster for Kent & Medway. 
  

5. What has been the impact of the NHS Operating Framework for 2011/12 and 
the PCT allocations for next financial year? 

 
The PCT will receive an increase to its baseline allocation of 2.2% (£26m) in 
2011/12, plus an explicit non-recurrent provision of 0.7% (£8m) for 
commissioners to spend on measures which support social care and benefit 
health in agreement with social care commissioners. 
 
The Operating Framework does stipulate that 2% of recurrent funds (£24m) 
can only be committed on a non-recurrent basis.  
 
There is a net tariff reduction of 1.5% which will generate a reduction to 
overall costs of £9m. 
 

6. How is the QIPP challenge being met in Kent? 
 

Over the past five years, the PCT has received substantial growth to its 
allocation of funds, but this tapered off in 2010/11 and is below current 
inflation levels for next financial year. There is a step change required in 
generating funds within the health economy – through delivery of an imposing 
QIPP programme. 
 
The QIPP challenge is being addressed at both a local PCT level, and 
through emerging GP Commissioning Consortia, and at the Kent & Medway 
level. The scale of the challenge in NHS East Kent is £67m in 2011/12, with 
the PCT required to generate £48m of these efficiencies. Delivery plans for 
2011/12 are now at an advanced stage, but the scale of the challenge cannot 
be under-estimated.  

 

Page 50



Item 8: Report from NHS Eastern and Coastal Kent 

7. What are the particular demographic trends in Kent that will affect NHS 
commissioning now and in the future, and how does Kent compare on these 
compared to the rest of the country? 

 

Population demographics such as age, sex and ethnicity and the changes in 
population demographics are likely to have an influence on the 
commissioning of NHS services.  Table 1 shows the projected population 
change in 2028 from a baseline of 2008, by selected age bands.  The total 
resident population of Kent is projected to increase by 24.3% compared to 
just 19.8% for England.  The largest population growth is projected to be in 
the over 65 population, with those living to 85 or older increase by almost 
100%.  This is likely to result in greater demand of healthcare services as life 
expectancy is increasing resulting in more people living longer with long term 
conditions, such as diabetes, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and 
dementia. 
 
The under 5s population is project to increase just over 10% over the next 20 
years.  This will impact on the need for health visiting services and other 
services relating to children. 
 
Changes in the ethnic mix of populations also impact on commissioning of 
services as communities have different health risks for example the smoking 
prevalence in East European countries is greater than that on England, which 
may lead to an increase in cancer related and circulatory related illness in 
these populations in the future. 
 
Population growth for 35-54 is lower than that for other age bands, this is 
likely to have an impact on the workforce as stated in KCC 'Bold Steps for 
Kent', pg20 
 
"By 2026 the older population of Kent is expected to have increased by 30.7% 
on 2006 levels, whilst the ratio of traditional working age population compared 
to those of current state pension age will have fallen from 3.1: to 2:1" 
 
Table 1: Percentage population change from 2008 to 2028 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

       

 Kent England 

  2008 2028 
Percentage 
change 2008 2028 

Percentage 
Change 

Under 
5s 83.0 91.4 10.1% 3,129.4 3,409.8 9.0% 

05-19 264.3 291.0 10.1% 9,231.2 10,128.3 9.7% 

20-34 232.8 254.6 9.4% 10,246.7 11,020.8 7.6% 

35-44 205.6 213.6 3.9% 7,715.0 8,190.1 6.2% 

45-54 188.9 194.2 2.8% 6793.1 6723.1 -1.0% 

55-64 180.1 219.8 22.0% 6,060.9 7,190.4 18.6% 

65+ 247.0 390.5 58.1% 8,288.3 12,388.6 49.5% 

75+ 119.8 209.4 74.8% 4,012.6 6,579.9 64.0% 

85+ 34.7 69.1 99.1% 1,134.6 2,195.7 93.5% 

       

Kent 1,556.2 1,933.6 24.3% 56,611.8 67,826.7 19.8% 

       

Source: ONS 2008 based population projections   
Page 51



Item 8: Report from NHS Eastern and Coastal Kent 

Life expectancy is influenced by changes in mortality table 2 shows the trends 
in life expectancy for Kent and Medway as a county and England. Figure 1 
shows the trend in All Age All Cause mortality, which has been steadily 
declining since 1996.  Kent experiences less mortality than England as a 
whole. 

 

 

Table 2: Life expectancy at birth 2004-2008 to 2006-2010 
 2004-08 2005-09 2006-10 

NHS area Male Female Persons Male Female Persons Male Female Persons 

Kent and Medway NHS 78.1 82.0 80.1 78.4 82.2 80.3 78.4 82.2 80.3 

England (2006-2008) 77.9 82.0        

Source: Public Health Mortality File, 2004-10; ONS CAS  ward data; SEPHO, NCHOD    

 

 

 
 

All Age All Cause Mortality Trends 1996-2008
Source: National Centre for Health Outcomes Knowledge Base

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

D
ir
e
c
tl
y
 a
g
e
-s
ta
n
d
a
rd
is
e
d
 m

o
rt
a
li
ty
 p
e
r 
1
0
0
,0
0

England Kent

England 744.84 730.56 719.06 710.8 684.27 667.87 663.19 661.88 626.61 613.18 591.61 579.4 574.81

Kent 721.55 708.28 681.14 679.16 664.53 632.19 634.16 641.99 602.62 596.83 564.58 560.45 541.46

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

 

 

Page 52



Item 8: Report from NHS West Kent 

 
 
 
 
Rod Smith 
Director of Finance & Estates      
 
 
Briefing Paper 
Kent Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, March 25th 2010 
 
A range of specific questions were notified to the PCT in advance of the meeting 
which address two broad areas of interest to the HOSC.  The intention of the briefing 
is to answer the questions and provide information that will help members of HOSC 
to explore the areas further before and on the day.  
 
For convenience the briefing refers to and answers each specific question under the 
two main headings. Other relevant documents containing greater detail are referred 
to and attached where appropriate.  
 
1. What are the challenges to ensuring the NHS in Kent is financially 

sustainable?  
• Why is achieving financial balance across the local health economy 

important and what are the potential consequences of not doing so?  
• Achieving financial balance is a statutory duty of NHS organisations. Primary 

Care Trusts have specific annual requirements, and NHS Trusts have 
greater flexibility to break even over a rolling three year period, which in 
some circumstances may be extended to 5 years. 

• Financial balance is consistent with financial sustainability. However, 
financial sustainability alone is not the challenge. The provision of and 
access to services that meet required standards on a sustainable basis is 
the real challenge. Sustainable service provision helps to ensure that 
valuable services continue to be provided reliably. Financial imbalance is 
usually an indicator and measure of wider problems and challenges facing a 
system. 

• Over and above the direct implications for users of services, the resources 
and activities required to restore financial balance can compete with or even 
displace the functions of planning, prioritising and making changes to 
achieve strategic objectives. In extremis intervention by third parties is the 
consequence, which often diminishes the ability of local stakeholders to work 
together and drive their locally owned agenda, until a form of balance is 
restored.  

• Achieving and sustaining financial balance is itself a continuous activity. The 
public as taxpayers rightly expect services to be continually improved in 
terms of effectiveness, availability, quality standards and cost. Providing this 
challenge is tackled collectively and is properly understood in terms of using 
all of our resources as effectively as possible with due regard to fairness; 
money becomes the currency, and excellent health and healthcare for local 
residents is the business.   

 
 
 

Page 53



• What are the main challenges to achieving financial balance across the 
health economy? 
• The PCT five year Strategic Commissioning Plan “Best Possible Health” was 

published in January 2010.1 The PCT is now developing the second Annual 
Operating Plan based on the strategy. The Strategic Commissioning Plan 
describes the needs assessment, prioritisation process and engagement that 
resulted in the final Board approved plan. The document also describes the 
challenges facing the NHS in general and West Kent in particular. The 
challenges and risks described in the plan remain relevant today. Ten key 
points drawn from the Strategic Commissioning Plan are: 

   
1. Increased investment will be relatively flat from 2011 onwards. The 

actual settlement includes over 2% new funding, which is better than 
the plan anticipated. 

2. The funding available to West Kent is about right according to current 
funding formula. The recently revised and updated national formula 
indicates that West Kent is 2% below its fair share allocation. The fair 
share allocation itself is around 10% below the overall average NHS 
per capita allocation. 

3. The health of West Kent residents is better than the England average, 
but there pockets of deprivation. 

4. Benchmarking indicates that there is variation at health programme 
level. For example, more of our spending is attributed to cancer 
services than other areas, but the outcomes do not appear to be better 
than other areas. 

5.  High cost providers and PFI facilities mean that more money is spent 
on buildings and facilities, and less on front-line staff, patient services 
and medicines. The facilities are high quality, but like all resources they 
need to be used wisely. 

6. The combined effect of demographic growth, and other drivers 
including technology, innovation, externally defined standards and 
regulation mean that over £300m of additional value/ costs need to be 
absorbed over five years. This will be achieved by managing 
inflationary pressure including pay increases and by improving 
productivity. Where real additional costs are incurred, for example more 
staff, more drugs or more wheelchairs, real costs may need to be 
reduced elsewhere. 

7. Twelve clinically defined programmes were identified, which mapped 
into strategic initiatives categorised into operational, tactical and 
transformational initiatives. Since the plan was published, the initiatives 
have been mapped into “QIPP” categories and further developed. 

8. Public engagement in the transformation of services is critical to 
success. 

9. An integrated health and well-being model to increase independence 
and employment and empower and support personalised self-care for 
people with long term conditions and their carers is an essential part of 
the five year plan. 

10. The development of GP commissioning and Health and Well Being 
Boards appear well aligned with the strategy. The strategic direction 
remains valid in 2011 and will continue to inform the annual operating 
plan.  

 

Page 54



• In 2011/12 the PCT needs to take additional steps to reverse increases in 
hospital activity and costs in order to achieve the improvements identified in 
the Strategic Commissioning Plan. A range of initiatives intended to enable a 
full range of services to be delivered within the available funding for 2011/12 
has been developed. The initiatives are consistent with the original strategy 
and reflect the contributions of local clinical leaders.  

• The three main risks identified in 2010 are relevant in 2011. (see page 49 of 
the plan for the detailed wording) 
1. Scale and pace 
2. Engagement and ownership 
3. Achieving transformation, while maintaining grip in an environment of 

change. 
 

• The mitigation has been strengthened in 2011 
1. Development of Practice Based Commissioning towards GP consortia. 
2. PCT clusters developed to support transition phase of White Paper. 
3. Real terms growth in funding compared with no growth assumed in plan. 

 
• What has been the impact of the NHS Operating Framework for 2011/12 and 

the PCT allocations for the next financial year? 
• The impact for most parts of the NHS is that the increased allocation, 

including funds directed towards social care, is almost sufficient to fund 
some transformational change, expected price/ wage inflation and some 
demographic pressure. 

• The allocation is not sufficient to fully fund demographic pressure or any new 
investment in local health systems. 

• Measures to achieve financial plans in 2010/11 need to be made good in 
2011/12 in West Kent. This requires a greater effort to deliver the range of 
services in the Annual Operating Plan within the available funding.   

• Appendix 1 describes the financial headlines from the NHS Operating 
Framework. 

 
• What are the particular demographic trends in Kent that will affect NHS 

commissioning now and in the future, and how does Kent compare on these 
compared to the rest of the country? 

• According to ONS estimates, there will be an increase of more than 56% in 
the over 65yrs population in West Kent by 2028 compared to 50% for the 
rest of England. 

• In 2017 this group will constitute approximately 18% of the total West Kent 
population, rising to 20% by 2028. 

• In terms of five years age bands, the biggest increase will be seen in the 85+ 
males, approximately 170% increase by 2028 (from 5000 to 13,000) 

• These increases have serious implications for health and care delivery. For 
example, over 65s are 18 times more likely to suffer long term heart/ 
circulatory problems. 

• By 2028, the proportion of under 5s and 5-19 yrs population group in West 
Kent is expected to increase by 12% compared to 9% for the rest of 
England. 

• The lowest increases are expected for working age population with only 6% 
increase in the 35-44yrs age group, similar to the England average. 

• Please see the response from East Kent for a Kent wide analysis of 
demographics. 

Page 55



 
2. Are there any implications for the range and quality of health services 

available to the people of Kent as a result of any measures being taken to 
achieve or maintain financial sustainability? 
• Achieving and maintaining financial sustainability is an integral part of the 

strategy, which will result in the best possible health for local residents. 
• Where service changes are required, current services may be replaced with 

more effective services or removed altogether if they are no longer relevant 
to the current needs of the population. 

• Some services may no longer be available if they are considered to be of 
limited benefit to patients. 

• An underlying principle of QIPP is that improving the quality and safety of 
healthcare services will derive significant savings across all healthcare 
provision.  This theme of “quality as the organising principle’ is central to 
achieving financial sustainability for the future.  A number of contractual 
measures such as never events, CQUIN and penalty clauses will secure 
improved quality through financial controls. 

 
• What kinds of measures have been taken in 2010/11 in terms of prioritising 

treatments and changing service provision across Kent in order to try and 
achieve financial balance? 
• The Annual Operating Plan2 for 2010/11 describes the first year 

implementation of the five year plan. 
• A range of additional measures were considered during the year to help 

achieve the longer term financial balance. These were considered by the 
PCT after consultation with clinical groups and representatives of the public. 
Appendix 2 is a letter to West Kent clinicians together with a summary 
feedback. 

• Although most if not all of the proposals had been considered or 
implemented in other parts of the NHS, only some of the proposals were 
considered to be acceptable. A few of the proposals were considered to 
have longer term benefits and have been included in the operating plan 
proposals for 2011/12.  

• GP Commissioners are more involved in agreeing our plans and priorities for 
2011/12.  This engagement will certainly increase the chances of success. 

 
• What kinds of measures are being considered for 2011/12? 

• The measures being considered in 2011/12 are still under development and 
will be considered by the PCT Board at the end of March.  

• The financial implications of the proposed initiatives to deliver the objectives 
of the Annual Operating Plan are summarised using the 18 QIPP categories. 
For 2011/12 over £30m of resources are freed up to allow greater value to 
be achieved from the same programme area or actual cash released to 
enable investment in other programmes.5  

• An Operating Plan Assurance statement is being developed to help ensure 
that the objectives being pursued reflect national operating plan priorities.   

    
• How is the QIPP challenge being met in Kent? 

• PCTs remain responsible for the delivery of the Annual Operating Plan 
including QIPP. 

• QIPP plans have been developed and pursued at PCT and emerging GP 
commissioning consortia level, and at Kent and Medway level. This 

Page 56



recognises both the different scale and complexity of some transformational 
schemes, and the need for all plans to have local ownership. 

• PCT clusters are being created as part of the transition phase of the winding 
up of the PCTs and the development of new arrangements.   

 
 
 
References: 
 
1.  NHS West Kent five year strategic commissioning plan “Best Possible Health” 

January 2010. Please refer to the document pages 1 – 52. 
 
 http://www.westkentpct.nhs.uk/Have_Your_Say/Best_Possible_Health_Strategic_Pla

n/index.html 
 
2.  NHS West Kent Annual Operating Plan for 2010/11. Please refer to the document 

pages 1-16. 
 
  http://www.westkentpct.nhs.uk/The_PCT/Our_plans/index.html 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 57



Appendix 1 -  Impact of NHS Operating Framework 2011/12 
 
 

Impact Of NHS Operating 

Framework 2011/12

Kent Health Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee

25th March 2011

National Surplus

• Aggregate national PCT surplus delivered in 
2010-11

• Draw down to be determined by SHA in 
conjunction with DH

• No PCT to plan for a deficit

• Still 1% surplus national expectation, but some 
flexibility

• 2% of budget deployed Non-Recurrently
– To be held by SHAs

– Business Cases required to access

  
 
 
 
 

PCT Allocations

• Headline growth 2.2%

• Further 0.8% relating to joint working with Social care

• Dental/Ophthalmic and Pharmaceutical now to remain as 
annually set allocations, pending creation of NHS 
Commissioning Board

• Not all allocations published as yet
– SHA Bundle allocations will be critical

• Prisons

• IAPT

• A number of announcements in Operating Plan require 
new funding to be identified from the increased 
allocation.

• PCT revised Distance from Target – 2.1% (£21m)

Anticipated Resource Limit

7,814 Joint working with Social care

1,008,551 Total anticipated Resource Limit

1,222 Other

5,132 Central Budgets

-Brought forward surplus

2,000 Impairments

- 6,028 NSCAG

- 485 Free School Fruit

- 1,617 Cancer Drugs

- 19,635 Regional Transformation Fund

38,390 Primary Care (Dental/Ophthalmic/Pharmaceutical)

981,758 Recurrent Allocation

 
 
 
 

Social care

• PCTs have an allocation to invest in social 

care services to benefit health and to 

improve overall health gain (£7.814m)

• PCTs will transfer this funding to Local 

Authorities, e.g.

– Telecare, falls prevention, community 

equipment and adaptations, crisis response

• Re-ablement services (£2m)

Tariffs (1)

• Efficiency drives
– Changing tariff to ensure relatively short stays do not 
attract long stay tariff

– All tariffs set 1% below the national average

– Expansion of Best Practice tariffs

– Combined, embeds 2% efficiency in tariff structure

• Pay &Price assumption  2.5%

• Efficiency requirement (4.0%)

• Net tariff change reduction (1.5%)

• Applies to non tariff settings as well

 
 

Page 58



Tariffs (2)

• Hospitals not reimbursed for readmissions within 30 days

• PCTs should use Re-ablement funds to coordinate activity on post-
discharge support

• New outpatient tariffs

• Review of Specialist Top-Ups

• 30% marginal rate for emergency admissions (same base year of 
2008-09)

• New flexibility – providers can offer services below tariff

• CQUIN (quality incentive) remains at 1.5%

• The combined impact of all this should increase PCT purchasing 
power, but need to await results of Road-testing tariffs before 
confirming

 
 
   
 
 

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Appendix to Minutes

	5 Women's and Children's Services at Maidstone and Tunbridge Wells NHS Trust: Update.
	Letter from the Secretary of State for Health

	6 Proposal to Establish Informal HOSC Liaison Groups
	7 Safe and Sustainable - A New Vision for Congenital Heart Services in England
	Item 7 Appendix

	8 NHS Financial Sustainability. Part 1: Commissioning.
	NHS Financial Sustainability Background Note
	Background Note Appendix 1
	Background Note Appendix 2
	Report from NHS Eastern and Coastal Kent: NHS Financial Sustainability
	Report from NHS West Kent NHS Financial Sustainability
	NHS West Kent Appendix 2
	NHS West Kent Appendix 3


